
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR SESSION 

MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2023 7:00 PM 
PRESIDING: THE HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT A. DESANA 

CHAIRPERSON OF THE EVENING: THE HONORABLE TODD HANNA 
 

 

  
CALL TO ORDER  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  
ROLL CALL Alderman, Calvin, Crayne, Hanna, Shuryan, Stec 
  
PRESENTATIONS  
  
PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  

• Alley Vacation: S. of  Grove - 5th St. & Albion St. 
• Alley Vacation: S. of  Grove - Albion St. & 6th St. 

  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
  
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
At this time, any persons having matters of immediate importance which they were unable to 
place in writing prior to the agenda deadline may approach the podium and will have three (3) 
minutes to address Mayor and Council. 
  
CONSENT AGENDA All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the 
City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items, unless a Council member so requests, in which event the items will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and added to the regular agenda in New Business. 

1. Approval of City Council Minutes 02.27.2023 
2. Department of Municipal Services Audited Financial Statements – FY2022 
3. Washington Elementary School Road Closure Request - Literacy Walk 
4. Knights of Columbus 1802 "Tootsie Roll Drive" 

  
NEW BUSINESS  

5. Appointment to Cultural and Historical Commission 
6. Purchase of Police Vehicles 
7. Business License Application - Mothra Tattoo Studios LLC 3008 First Street 
8. Hiring: Clerk Typist I - Engineering and Building Department 
9. McKinley School Redevelopment Proposal - Safeway Acquisition Co. 

10. Alley Encroachment at 1165-1167 McKinley Street 
11. Renewal of License Agreement: Blue Water Explorations, Ltd., DBA Diamond Jack's River Tours 
12. Bid #4726: 2023 Grass Cutting Services Extension 
13. Bid Award #4839: Demolition of McKinley School - International Construction, Inc. 
14. Bid Award #4842: 2023 Sewer CCTV Project - Rogue Industrial Services 
15. Vacate and Abolish Alley South of Grove Street - 5th to Albion 
16. Vacate Alley South of Grove Street - Albion to 6th 

  
BILLS & ACCOUNTS  
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Fire Commission 2/14/2023 
Police Commission 2/14/2023 & 2/28/2023 
WMS Commission 2/22/2023 
  
REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS

  

  
NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL: MARCH 27, 2023 
  
ADJOURNMENT  
 

  
REPORTS & MINUTES  



PUBLIC HEARINGS

Now is the time and place to hear objections, 
if any, regarding the following item(s):

Alley Vacation
To vacate and abolish the sixteen (16) foot wide east/west public alley 

south of Grove Street between 5th St. and Albion St.

Alley Vacation
To vacate the sixteen (16) foot wide east/west public alley 

south of Grove Street between Albion St. and 6th St.
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CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A Regular Session of the Wyandotte City Council was held in Council Chambers and via Virtual 

Telecommunication methods, due to COVID-19 in accordance with Wayne County Local Public Health 

Department “Guidance for Meetings of Governmental Bodies” and PA228 of 2020, using the Zoom 

Audio platform, on Monday, February 27, 2023, and was called to order at 7:00pm with Honorable 

Mayor Robert A. DeSana presiding. 
 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by roll call.
 

Present: Mayor Robert A. DeSana, Councilpersons Robert Alderman, Christopher Calvin, Kaylyn 

Crayne, Todd Hanna, Rosemary Shuryan, Kelly Stec 
 

ABSENT: Todd Browning, City Treasurer; Theodore Galeski, City Assessor 
 

Also Present: William R. Look, City Attorney; Greg Mayhew, City Engineer; and Beth Lekity, Deputy 

City Clerk 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS 

PUBLIC HEARING 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 2023-42 WOW 360 EVENTS: USE OF PROPERTY 2023 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council approves the use of city sidewalks, streets and property for the events 

held on the dates listed below: 

Date TBD 2023: Dave & Chuck the Freak’s 0.5k 

Exact date to be determined and later mutually approved by City Council and WOW 360. The tentative 

footprint will include Maple Street closed from an alleyway to 2nd Street. 

March 17,18, 2023: St. Patrick’s Day Party and Leprechaun Pub Crawl 

Maple closed from alleyway to 2nd Street. 

April 21, 2023: Vodka Social 

Permission to use 3 parking spots directly in front of 142 Maple Street. 

May 6, 2023: Cinco Block Party 

Maple closed from alleyway to 2nd Street. 

June 2-4, 2023: Bark on Biddle 

No changes from previous City Council approval. The event will utilize Bishop Park from the end of the 

American Legion to Oak Street, Parking Lot #1 including all city sidewalk space and the grassy area 

along the waterfront to Elm Street. NY E will utilize 1st Street from Elm to Maple and Maple from 

Biddle to 2nd Street, Parking Lot # 10, along with all city sidewalk space. Portion of Parking Lot #1 to 

remain open to the public for business and residents' parking. 

June 8 -11, 2023: Swiggin’ Pig 

No changes from previous City Council approval. Road and Parking Lot Closure began in the morning 

and will increase as the week continues, including City Hall Parking Lot #7; Yack Arena Parking Lot 

#8; Maple & 2nd St. Parking Lot #9; 1st Street between Elm and Maple, Parking Lot #10; Maple Street 

between Biddle and 3rd Street. 2nd Street remains open as proposed, and a “soft closure” will be 

implemented after peak delivery hours made by trucks/vans to the businesses located on that block, once 

large volumes of crowds begin to gather each day of the event. Roads and parking lots reopen on 

Sunday after the event. 
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August 19, 2023: Wyandotte Wine Crawl 

Proposed time change, rescheduled from Friday, August 18th to Saturday, August 19th. No other 

changes from previous City Council approval Road Closures will begin at 9:00 AM on Friday. Biddle 

Avenue will be closed between Oak Street and Eureka Road; Sycamore Street from Biddle to Alley 

East; Maple Street from Biddle to Alley East; Elm Street from Biddle to Alley East; Sycamore Street 

from Biddle to Second St.; Maple from Biddle to Alley West; Elm from Biddle to Alley West; First 

Street from Entrance to Parking Lot #11 to Maple Street. Roads will be reopened after the event. 

Proposed time change, rescheduled from Fri. to Sat. 

September 15, 2023: Wyandotte Beer Fest 

Proposed time change, rescheduled from Friday, September 22nd to Friday, September 15th. No other 

changes from previous City Council approval. Parking Lot #1. Portion to remain open to the public for 

business and residents' parking. 

September 21-24, 2023: Fire & Flannel Fest 

No changes from previous City Council approval. Road and Parking Lot Closure began in the morning 

and will increase as the week continues, including City Hall Parking Lot #7; Yack Arena Parking Lot 

#8; Maple & 2nd St. Parking Lot #9; 1st Street between Elm and Maple, Parking Lot #10; Maple Street 

between Biddle and 3rd Street. 2nd Street remains open as proposed, and a “soft closure” will be 

implemented after peak delivery hours made by trucks/vans to the businesses located on that block, once 

large volumes of crowds begin to gather each day of the event. Roads and parking lots reopen Sunday 

after the event. 

October 7, 2023: Tacos, Hops & Tequila 

A revamped Taco Hop with new event hosts, the same setup, will utilize the Riverfront Parking Lot #1 

which will be closed starting at 6am on Friday and until 11:59pm. Portion to remain open to the public 

for business and residents parking. 

October 21, 2023: 80’s vs. 80’s Halloween Party and Pub Crawl 

District 142. No closures proposed. 

November 4, 2023: Detroit River Cocktail Showdown 

District 142. No closures proposed. 

December 15, 2023: Santa Pub Crawl 

District 142. No closures proposed. 

December 1, 2023: Winter Beer & Holiday Cocktail Hour 

District 142. No closures proposed. 

December 31, 2023: Rockin’ NYE 

No changes from the previous City Council approval event will utilize 1st Street from Elm to Maple and 

Maple from Biddle to 2nd Street, Parking Lot # 10 along with all city sidewalk space. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council hereby approve the Proposed 

Comprehensive Moratoriums to be placed in the entire Downtown Wyandotte Social District as 

presented: 

 • Wine Crawl on Saturday, August 19th, 2023 

 • Rockin’ NYE Celebration on Sunday, December 31st ,2023 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council hereby approve the Proposed Partial 

Moratoriums to be placed within specific areas of Downtown Wyandotte Social District, and shall not 

impede the Social District operations of any of the other licensed and permitted establishments, as 

 • St. Patrick’s Day Party and Leprechaun Pub Crawl on March 17,18, 2023: Maple St. from an alleyway 

to 2nd Street. 

 • Cinco Block Party on May 6, 2023: Maple St. from alleyway to 2nd Street. 

 • Swiggin’ Pig on June 8 11, 2023: Maple St. from Biddle to Alleyway between 2 nd Street and 3rd 

Street; and 1st Street between Elm Street and Maple Street 

 • September 21 24, 2023: Fire & Flannel Fest on September 21 24: Maple St. from Biddle to Alleyway 

between 2 nd Street and 3 rd Street; and 1 st Street between Elm Street and Maple Street 
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the Use of City Property Agreement 2023 that shall further outline the specific processes for 

requesting City services, technology and equipment for the above referenced events, dates, times and 

locations. And that any requests from WOW 360 regarding the use of city property, equipment or staff 

for the above-referenced events that are made after this request is reviewed and hereby approved by the 

City Council shall be evaluated by the Special Events Coordinator and all necessary Department Heads 

for approval/denial. 

Motion unanimously carried. 

• Chris Doulos & Dan Martin, downtown business owners, spoke regarding impact of street 

closures for events. 

 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

• Alex Cotner, Caitie Moore, & Joshua Castmore spoke regarding the cell tower placement at 

Washington Elementary. Invited Mayor and Council to attend meeting with Superintendent on 

March 2, 2023 at 6:30 in Washington Elementary School Cafeteria. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

2023-43 MINUTES 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held under the dates of February 13, 2023, be approved as  

recorded without objection. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-44 SPRING FLING 2023 SIGN PLACEMENT REQUEST 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

WHEREAS the Council has received a request from Rick Malechuck of St. Vincent Pallotti Parish 

requesting the use of city property on Second & Goddard, Goddard-Beaver Park, Oak (South Side 

between 1st and 2nd), Grove (South of recycle entrance), Elm & First and Oak & Van Alstyne for 

placement of 4x4, 4x8 & 18x24 standard lawn signs for the Spring Fling 2023 event from April 21 

through May 15, 2023. 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council grants permission to St. Vincent Pallotti Parish and its Spring Fling 

2023 organizers to place said signs on the requested city-owned lots for the requested time period, 

provided that the organization submits a Hold Harmless Agreement to the City Clerk, as prepared by the 

Department of Legal Affairs. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-45 SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST: BELICOSO CAFE 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that Council Concurs with the recommendation of the Special 

Events Coordinator to approve the use of city sidewalks and property for the events to be held, August 

18th 2023, provided a live safety inspection will take place prior to the events beginning to review event 

and tent set up by the Fire Chief/Department.   

Belicoso Martini Cigar Bar - Backyard Bash 

August 18th 2023 

Start Time of 4 pm to 1 am 

Permission to use First Street between Elm and Maple behind Belicoso Martini Cigar Bar 

We require the business add the City of Wyandotte as additional insured to their insurance policy and 

have a signed hold harmless on file.Belicoso Café is required to pay for any fees associated with the use 

of city equipment and manpower for all events.  

Motion unanimously carried. 
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2023-46 DOWNTOWN HOLIDAY LIGHTING CONTRACT 2023 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby approve the renewal of the Downtown Holiday 

Lighting Proposal from Grosse Ile Lawn and & Sprinkler as approved in 2021 for the 2023 calendar 

year in the amount of $42,656.40 and authorize the DDA Director to proceed. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

2023-47 CITIZEN COMMUNICATION: M. AUDIA- NEZ TAX INCENTIVE 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOVLED that the citizen communication regarding NEZ Tax Incentive from M. Audia be received 

and placed on file. 

Motion unanimously carried. 

  

2023-48 “DISABILITY AWARENESS MONTH” – MARCH 2023 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

Whereas, the month of March, 2023, has been designated as “Disability Awareness Month” to celebrate 

and recognize people with disabilities; and 

Whereas, disability is a natural part of the human experience and in no way diminishes the right of 

individuals with disabilities to live independently, enjoy self-determination, make choices, contribute to 

society and experience fully in the economic, political, social, cultural and educational mainstream of 

American society; and 

Whereas, family members, friends and members of the Wyandotte community can play a central role in  

enhancing the lives of people with disabilities, and 

Whereas, public and private employers are encouraged to acknowledge the capabilities of people with  

disabilities to be engaged in competitive work in inclusive settings; and 

Whereas, the goals of Wyandotte include providing individuals with disabilities the opportunities and 

support to make informed choices and decisions; live a community where such individuals can exercise 

their full rights and responsibilities as citizens; pursue meaningful and productive lives; contribute to 

their family, community, state and nation; and achieve full inclusion in society; and 

Whereas, citizens of Wyandotte should do all in their power to; recognize the barriers presented to those 

with disabilities; create ways to include everyone, especially those with developmental disabilities, to be 

fully included in all aspects of life; understand the losses (financial, spiritual, human rights, 

contributions to community, and otherwise), when our communities segregate and create barriers for 

those with disabilities; demand policymakers create inclusive, equitable policies and systems for all. 

Therefore, let it be resolved that the mayor along with the City Council of the City of Wyandotte, do 

herby recognize the month of March, 2023, as DISABILITY AWARENESS MONTH in the City of 

Wyandotte.   

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-49 GENERAL INCREASE- WMS GENERAL MANAGER 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED by City Council that Council Concurs with the recommendation of the Wyandotte 

Municipal Services Commission and approves the general increase of 3.0% for the General Manager 

effective 2/27/2023, as recommended by the Municipal Services Commission. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-50 HIRING: FULL TIME COURT CLERK – 27TH DISTRICT COURT 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, that Council acknowledges receipt of the communication from 

the Human Resource Specialist regarding the hiring of a Full Time Court Clerk-Criminal Division/Court 

Recorder - Class Code 27C at the 27th District Court and concurs with the recommendation therein and 

hereby declares said position vacant and authorizes the filing of such vacancy and 
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FURTHER, RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council approves the hiring of Lauren 

Bielecki as a Full Time Court Clerk-Criminal Division/Court Recorder at Class Code 27C within the 

27th District Court contingent on the successful completion of a physical and drug screen. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
   
2023-51 HIRING: LABORER/EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (DPS) 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that Council acknowledges receipt of the communication from 

the Human Resource Specialist regarding the Laborer/Equipment Operator position at the Department of 

Public Service and concurs with the recommendation therein and hereby declares said position vacant 

and authorizes the filling of such vacancy and 

FURTHER, RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council approves the hiring of David 

Ferrell as a Laborer/Equipment Operator in the Department of Public Services effective February 28, 

2023. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-52 BID AWARD #4838: DOWNTOWN INFRASTRUCTURE DESIGN SERVICES 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the DDA Director to proceed with 

negotiating a Professional Design Services Contract for Bid File #4838-Downtown Infrastructure project 

with Spalding DeDecker. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-53 EUREKA ROAD VIADUCT MAINTENANCE 2023 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby concur with the DDA to hire P&P Landscaping for the  

Eureka Road Viaduct Landscaping and Maintenance Contract for spring, summer and fall of 2023 for 

the total contract amount of $31,228.11. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk 

to accept and sign the proposal subject to review of the contractual terms by the Department of Legal 

Affairs. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-54 FORT EUREKA SIGN MAINTENANCE 2023 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby concur with the DDA to hire P&P Landscaping for the 

Fort Street Eureka Road Electronic Sign Landscaping and Maintenance Contract for spring, summer and 

fall of 2023 for the total contract amount of $5,325.03, 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk 

to accept and sign the proposal subject to review and approval of the contractual terms by the 

Department of Legal Affairs. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-55 PLAN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION: 211 EUREKA- DUNKIN’ DONUTS 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL that the communication from the Planning  

Commission and the City Engineer regarding the proposed expansion with a drive-thru window of the 

Dunkin Donuts at 211 Eureka, is hereby received and placed on file; AND 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 16, 2023, and after said public 

hearing the Planning Commission determined that said development is in compliance with the planned 

development representations made at the time of approval of the Stage I Site Plan and, with the 

recommendation of the City Engineer, approved the plan as a final plan, meeting the requirements set 

forth in §190.279 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
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NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the final site plan and elevations are hereby APPROVED, 

including the proposed use, and shall become an integral part of the PD District, and for purposes of 

recordation shall be referred to as Planned Development No. 2023-23.  Approval of the final site plan 

shall be effective for a period of three (3) years, providing that development is commenced within one 

(1) year as evidenced, at a minimum, by issuance of a building permit.  If development is not 

commenced within one (1) year or not completed within three (3) years, the Planning Commission shall 

review progress to date and make a recommendation to the City Council as to action  

relative to permitting continuation under the original approval. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-56 BID AWARD #4841: 2023 PAVEMENT EVALUATION- PASER RATING 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and accepts the bid 

from Hennessey Engineers, Southgate, MI, to perform pavement evaluation in accordance with File 

#4841 – 2023 Pavement Evaluation – PASER Rating, in the amount of $9,600.00, which shall be funded 

from Account 202-440-825-460 Major Streets in the amount of $2,784.00, and Account 203-440-825-

460 Local Streets in the amount of $6,816.00; AND 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to sign the contract with Hennessey  

Engineers. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-57 BID #4800 CONTRACT EXT.: 2023 HMA RESURFACING PROGRAM 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED by City Council that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and 

approves the contract extension for Al's Asphalt Paving Co., File #4800, in the amount of $3,229,500 

with price increases for the following pay items: 

Item 12   Concrete Base Repair                                  $74.65 per SYD (previously $65.00) 

Item 14   Place 8-inch Finished Concrete                   $74.65 per SYD (previously $62.00) 

Item 17   Remove and Replace Curb                          $37.08 per LFT (previously $28.00) 

Item 19   Place 4-inch Concrete ADA Walk              $8.30 per SFT (previously $6.80) 

Item 20   Place 4-inch Concrete                                  $7.98 per SFT (previously $6.50) 

Item 21   ADA Detectable Warning Surface              $49.44 per LFT (previously $40.00) 

Item 23   Replace ADA Integral Curb                        $19.57 per LFT (previously $16.00) 

Item 25   Place 6-inch Concrete                                  $8.55 per SFT (previously $6.75) 

Item 28   HMA Base Course Patching                        $112.00 per TON (previously $84.00) 

Item 31   HMA Wearing Course - 5E3                       $112.00 per TON (previously $84.00) 

Item 32   HMA Leveling Course - 36 A                     $112.00 per TON (previously $84.00) 

Item 33   Hand Patch HMA Wearing Course - 36A   $112.00 per TON (previously$84.00) 

Item 34   Hand Patch HMA Wearing Course - 13A   $122.00 per TON (previously $110.00) 

Item 35   Driveway Patching                                      $220.00 per TON (previously$200) 

FURTHER, the contract extension shall incorporate the following street and parking lot projects: 

•Sycamore (Biddle - 3rd)                     Concrete and asphalt (Major) 

•7th Street (Eureka - Forest)                Asphalt resurfacing (Major) 

•13th Street (Grove - Pennsylvania)    Concrete patching (Major) 

•16th Street (Grove - Pennsylvania)    Concrete patching (Local)  

•Elm (17th - 20th)                                Concrete patching (Local) 

•17th Street (Vinewood - Walnut)       Concrete patching (Local)  

•Pine (Fort St - 23rd)                           Concrete reconstruction (Local) 

•Superior (Railroad – 9th)                   Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA) 

•Ash (Railroad - 9th)                           Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA)  

•4th Street (Goddard - St Johns)         Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA)  

•Bondie (Alfred - Garfield)                 Concrete patching (TIFA) 
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•Riverside Dr (Emmons - Riverbank) Concrete patching (TIFA)  

•11th Street (Oak - Vinewood)           Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA) 

•8th Street (Baumey - Antoine)          Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA)  

•Walnut (10th -15th)                          Asphalt resurfacing (TIFA) 

•City Hall parking lot                         Asphalt parking lot upgrades (City Hall Maintenance) 

•Police Department parking lot          Asphalt parking lot upgrades (TIFA Parking Lots)  

•DPS parking lot                                Asphalt parking lot upgrades (TIFA Parking Lots) 

AND FURTHER, the 2023 Hot Mix Asphalt Resurfacing Program work will be paid for as follows: 

202-440-825-460   Major Street Fund            $1,224,800 

203-440-825-460   Local Street Fund             $463,700 

492-200-825-460   TIFA Streets                     $1,366,000 

492-200-850-543   TIFA Parking Lots           $125,000 

530-444-825-420   City Hall Maintenance     $50,000 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2023-58 BILLS & ACCOUNTS 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED that the total bills and accounts of $ 2,870,715.44 as presented by the Mayor and City 

Clerk are hereby APPROVED for payment. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

REPORTS & MINUTES 

Beautification Commission  02/09/2023 

Civil Service Commission  02/08/2023 

Cultural & Historical Commission 12/08/2022 & 01/12/2023 

DDA Meeting    01/10/2023 

Fire Commission   01/24/2023 

Retirement Commission  02/17/2023 

WMS Commission   02/08/2023 
 

REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 2023-59 ADJOURNMENT 

By Councilperson Crayne, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED, that this regular meeting of the Wyandotte City Council be adjourned at 7:41pm.  

Motion unanimously carried. 

      

      __________________________ 

   Beth A. Lekity, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #1 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held under the dates of February 27, 2023, be approved as 
recorded without objection. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 



 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 2  

  

ITEM: Department of Municipal Services Audited Financial Statements – FY2022 

  
PRESENTER: Paul LaManes – General Manager 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A 

  
BACKGROUND: An independent audit of the Department of Municipal Services Financial 
Statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 was recently completed by Plante 
Moran.     

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: Continued fiscally responsible operations for the Department 
of Municipal Services. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Receive and place on file the audited financial statements for the 
Department of Municipal Services for the year ending September 30, 2022. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: N/A 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. 2022 WDMS Financial Statements FINAL 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #2 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council to receive and place on file the audited Financial Statements for the 
Department of Municipal Services for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of the Municipal Services Commission 
City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department

of Municipal Services

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of each major fund of City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of
Municipal Services (the "Department") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022 and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department's basic financial statements, as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of each major fund of the Department as of September 30, 2022 and the respective
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be  independent of the
Department and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to Note 1, which explains that these financial statements present only the Department and do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Wyandotte, Michigan as of September
30, 2022; the changes in its financial position; and the changes in its cash flows, where applicable thereof, for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended September 30, 2022, the Department
implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which establishes criteria for accounting for
leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Department's ability to continue as a going
concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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To the Members of the Municipal Services Commission 
City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department

of Municipal Services

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Department's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Department's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and other required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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To the Members of the Municipal Services Commission 
City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department

of Municipal Services

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Department's September 30, 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated February 14, 2022. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September 30,
2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

February 14, 2023
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services' (the "Department")
performance provides an overview of the Department's financial activities for the year ended September 30,
2022. Please read it in conjunction with the Department's financial statements.

Using This Annual Report

City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services is a department created by the City of Wyandotte,
Michigan (the "City") that is governed and operated independently from the City by the Municipal Services
Commission (the "Commission"). The Commission provides electric, water, cable television, internet, and VoIP
phone services to users in the City and accounts for these activities in separate funds. This annual report consists
of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of revenue, expenses, and
changes in net position provide information about the financial activities of the Department. This is followed by the
statement of cash flows, which presents detailed information about the changes in the Department’s cash position
during the year.

Financial Highlights

Electric Fund

 The Electric Fund’s operating revenue increased compared to the prior year by approximately 7.94 percent,
while operating expenses increased by approximately 1.96 percent. The increase in revenue is attributed to
market conditions caused by increased power supply costs that influenced the sale price of the energy that
corresponds to fixed cost power purchase agreements and advanced market purchases, underscoring the
expected outcome from the Department’s diversified power supply portfolio. Revenue was also impacted by
the sale of excess NOx credits allocated to the Wyandotte Power Plant at rising market prices created by a
market-dictated need to operate coal facilities as natural gas prices escalated both nationally and worldwide.
The increase in operating expenses is associated with the increase in market-based power supply costs for
energy due to global conflict; inflation issues influencing all costs; and the removal of the Wyandotte Power
Plant from the capacity market on June 1, 2022 due to new MISO capacity rules. This increase was offset
significantly by the net accounting impact of changes in the liabilities related to legacy retiree costs for the
defined benefit pension and traditional retiree health care and other postemployment benefits costs (OPEB).

 The Electric Fund’s operating income increased to $7,236,698, as compared to operating income of
$4,944,928 in the previous year. As noted, this increase is primarily due to the impact from the sale of energy
generated from fixed cost power purchase agreements and advanced bulk power supply hedges, favorable
market conditions leading to the sale of excess NOx credits, and the net decrease in the defined benefit
pension and retiree health care (OPEB) liabilities.

 The Department previously adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As a result, the
statement of net position includes a liability for the unfunded portion of the Department’s traditional retiree
health care costs. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(4,929,700),
which represents a reduction in the liability and is due to actual claims and premiums dropping from the
aggregate premiums previously projected in the actuarial valuation, and an increase in the discount rate used
in determining the liability reflecting the increase in interest rates in general. The net OPEB liability, a
noncurrent liability under full accrual accounting for the Electric Fund, is approximately $11,118,000 at
September 30, 2022.

 The Department previously implemented GASB Statement No. 68, which requires the recognition of the
unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability and a more comprehensive measurement of the annual costs
of pension benefits. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(659,841)
and is primarily due to a decrease in the allocation to the Electric Fund of the overall pension liability based on
the actuarial computed annual required contribution (ARC). The net pension liability, a noncurrent liability
under full accrual accounting for the Electric Fund, is approximately $4,536,000 at September 30, 2022.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

 The Department’s bond ordinance specifies that the Department’s Electric Fund budget should provide net
revenue that equals or exceeds 110 percent of its annual debt service requirement. The ratio that measures
the relationship between the Department’s net revenue and its annual debt service requirement is known as
the debt service coverage ratio. While the 110 percent debt service coverage ratio test is prospective, it is
important that the Department’s actual results yield net revenue that equals or exceeds 110 percent of the
annual debt service requirement. The actual debt service coverage exceeded 110 percent (approximately 153
percent for the year ended September 30, 2022).

For the purpose of computing the above debt service coverage ratio, the Department’s current year decrease
to the net other postemployment benefit obligation of $(4,929,700) for the year ended September 30, 2022
was added back to the computation of amounts available for debt. Refer to Note 10 for additional details
regarding the net OPEB liability. Also, the Department’s current year adjustment to the net pension liability of
$(659,841) was also added back to the computation of amounts available for debt. Refer to Note 9 for
additional details regarding the net pension liability. Another financial covenant in the Department’s bond
ordinance requires actual expenditures of the Department to not exceed the budget. The Department’s actual
operating expenses did not exceed the budget.

 This year’s financial statements report unrestricted net position for the Electric Fund of $515,937 compared to
$(2,156,824) in the prior year. The increase is primarily due to continued stable operational performance and
the decrease in the actuarial determined retiree health care liability.

 As anticipated, the Electric Fund utilized existing cash reserves to fund capital projects without incurring
additional debt. This resulted in a net decrease in cash for the fiscal year.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Water Fund

 The Water Fund’s operating revenue increased by approximately 0.80 percent, while operating expenses
decreased by approximately 18.54 percent compared to the prior year. Operating revenue was flat and reflects
the continued decrease in water usage offset by the fixed-charge adjustments necessary to maintain the
overall system. Commodity prices for water treatment increased during the year due to inflation; however, the
decrease in operating expenses is mainly attributed to the adjustment in the defined benefit pension and
traditional retiree health care liabilities.

 Operating income in the current year increased by $610,536 and resulted in operating income for the current
year of $1,909,452. The Department annually reviews its rate structure for the water utility to maintain the
financial condition of the Water Fund so that operating (including retiree costs) expenses and
capital/infrastructure requirements (including state mandates) continue to be met. In order to meet those
requirements, usage and meter rates were adjusted effective October 1, 2022.

 The Department previously adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As a result, the
statement of net position includes a liability for the unfunded portion of the Department’s retiree health care
costs. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(944,051), which
represents a reduction in the liability and is due to actual claims and premiums dropping from the aggregate
premiums previously projected in the actuarial valuation, and an increase in the discount rate used in
determining the liability reflecting the increase in interest rates in general. The net OPEB liability, a noncurrent
liability under full accrual accounting for the Water Fund, is approximately $2,607,000 at September 30, 2022.

 The Department previously implemented GASB Statement No. 68, which requires the recognition of the
unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability and a more comprehensive measurement of the annual costs
of pension benefits. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(272,539)
and is primarily due to a decrease in the allocation to the Water Fund of the overall pension liability based on
the actuarial computed annual required contribution. The net pension liability, a noncurrent liability under full
accrual accounting for the Water Department, is approximately $615,000 at September 30, 2022.

 This year’s financial statements report unrestricted net position for the Water Fund of $1,516,372 compared to
$297,539 in the prior year. The increase is primarily due to continued stable operational performance and the
decrease in the actuarial determined retiree health care liability.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cable Television Fund

 The Cable Television Fund realized operating income of $2,387,749 in the current year, as compared to
operating income of $2,206,821 in the prior year, an increase which would have been greater had the
Department not benefited from the FCC C-band auction in the prior year. The Department continues to
experience growth in subscriber additions for the Department’s broadband/internet services.

 The Department’s bond ordinance specifies that the Department’s Cable Television Fund budget should
provide net revenue that equals or exceeds 110 percent of its annual debt service requirement. The ratio that
measures the relationship between the Department’s net revenue and its annual debt service requirement is
known as the debt service coverage ratio. While the 110 percent debt service coverage ratio test is
prospective, it is important that the Department’s actual results yield net revenue that equals or exceeds 110
percent of the annual debt service requirement. The actual debt service coverage exceeded 110 percent
(approximately 276 percent for the year ended September 30, 2022). 

For the purpose of computing the above debt service coverage ratio, the Department’s current year decrease
to the net other postemployment benefit liability of $(299,548) for the year ended September 30, 2022 was
added back to the computation of amounts available for debt. Refer to Note 10 for additional details regarding
the net OPEB obligation. Also, the Department’s current year adjustment to the net pension liability of
$(146,667) was added back to the computation of amounts available for debt. Refer to Note 9 for additional
details regarding the net pension liability. 

 The Cable Television Fund continues to experience positive growth in internet subscribers, adding
approximately 310 new, internet-only subscribers, during the current year (663 new subscribers over the prior
two fiscal years).

 The Department previously adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As a result, the
statement of net position includes a liability for the unfunded portion of the Department’s retiree health care
costs. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(299,548), which
represents a reduction in the liability and is due to actual claims and premiums dropping from the aggregate
premiums previously projected in the actuarial valuation, and an increase in the discount rate used in
determining the liability reflecting the increase in interest rates in general. The net OPEB liability, a noncurrent
liability under full accrual accounting for the Cable Television Fund, is approximately $2,353,000 at September
30, 2022. 

 The Department previously implemented GASB Statement No. 68, which requires the recognition of the
unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability and a more comprehensive measurement of the annual costs
of pension benefits. The impact on operating income for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $(146,667)
and is primarily due to a decrease in the allocation to the Cable Television Fund of the overall pension liability
based on the actuarial computed annual required contribution. The net pension liability, a noncurrent liability
under full accrual accounting for the Cable Television Fund, is approximately $641,000 at September 30,
2022.

 This year’s financial statements report unrestricted net position for the Cable Television Fund of $3,773,097
compared to $3,670,275 in the prior year and reflects continued stable operations. 

 As anticipated, the Cable Television Fund utilized both existing cash reserves and existing bond proceeds to
fund capital projects without incurring additional debt. This resulted in a net decrease in cash for the fiscal year
for both operating cash and restricted cash.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Condensed Financial Information

The following table presents condensed information about the Department's financial position compared to the
prior year:

2021 2022 Change Percent Change

Assets
Current and other assets:

Cash and investments $ 31,596,649 $ 29,202,284 $ (2,394,365) (7.6)
Receivables 8,864,897 7,872,847 (992,050) (11.2)
Other assets 12,585,693 10,324,773 (2,260,920) (18.0)

Property, plant, and equipment - Net 55,979,643 60,890,802 4,911,159 8.8

Total assets 109,026,882 108,290,706 (736,176) (0.7)

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,569,176 2,922,598 1,353,422 86.3

Liabilities
Current and other liabilities 7,070,147 6,810,384 (259,763) (3.7)
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 3,447,871 2,796,994 (650,877) (18.9)
Due in more than one year 33,605,431 30,899,879 (2,705,552) (8.1)
Net pension liability 3,241,451 5,790,633 2,549,182 78.6
Net OPEB liability 27,735,528 16,077,977 (11,657,551) (42.0)

Total liabilities 75,100,428 62,375,867 (12,724,561) (16.9)

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,851,948 5,095,291 3,243,343 175.1

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 28,080,784 33,126,955 5,046,171 18.0
Restricted 3,751,908 4,809,785 1,057,877 28.2
Unrestricted 1,810,990 5,805,406 3,994,416 220.6

Total net position $ 33,643,682 $ 43,742,146 $ 10,098,464 30.0

The following table presents condensed information about the Department's revenue and expenses compared to
the prior year:

2021 2022 Change Percent Change

Operating Revenue $ 53,800,648 $ 56,408,824 $ 2,608,176 4.8

Operating Expenses 45,349,983 44,874,925 (475,058) (1.0)

Nonoperating Expense - Net (1,574,085) (1,435,435) 138,650 (8.8)

Change in Net Position 6,876,580 10,098,464 3,221,884 46.9

Net Position - Beginning of year, as restated (Note 1) 26,767,102 33,643,682 6,876,580 25.7

Net Position - End of year $ 33,643,682 $ 43,742,146 $ 10,098,464 30.0

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

During the current year, the Department continued progress and completed various capital projects. The following
is a summary of the activity by fund:

The Electric Fund continues to work extensively in updating the transmission and distribution (T&D) system by
moving pole lines (to both aerial and underground), replacement of poles and performing other T&D construction
activity that will enhance system safety and reduce outage times.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In addition, the Electric Fund continued on joint construction with the Cable Television Fund in rehabilitating an
outdated building in the south end of the City that will serve as additional garage, storage, and training space for
the Department. Finalization of the building rehab was impacted by supply chain issues with completion now
expected by the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2023.

The most significant capital improvements in the Water Fund include year two of mandated service line
replacements and final completion of the Filter Plant Rehabilitation. The Water Fund also continues to upgrade
meters and install automated metering (AMI) equipment on existing meters.

The Cable Television Fund focused on the construction phase for both the fiber (FTTH/FTTP) broadband/internet
project and headend migration project.

In addition, the Cable Television Fund continued on joint construction with the Electric Fund in rehabilitating an
outdated building in the south end of the City that will serve as the new headend for the Department and provide
for additional garage, equipment preparation, training, and office space. The building will also house the IT server
room with both the headend and IT server rooms equipped with suitable environmental controls and generator
backup for facilities of this nature. Finalization of the building rehab was impacted by supply chain issues with
completion now expected by the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2023.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Operations

The Electric Fund now fully manages power supply through advanced hedging, day-ahead, real time, and power
purchase agreements for the purchase of market energy, transmission, and capacity. Requirements by MISO for
timing of plant startup no longer allow the Wyandotte Power Plant to be entered into the MISO market as a Load
Modifying Resource (LMR) or for capacity purposes. The plant will continue to serve as an emergency backup for
Wyandotte only for interconnect issues and load-shedding requests up to capacity available.

Electric rates for all rate classes were adjusted for the first time in 10 fiscal years beginning on October 1, 2022 to
reflect cost-of-service changes caused by power supply market conditions and inflation.

Contractual rates for steam service were adjusted beginning on January 1, 2023 and reflect current cost of
service.  These rates will continue to be reviewed annually for adjustment to reflect any revised cost of service for
operating the two auxiliary boilers.

The Water Fund continues to meet current recommended working capital and infrastructure needs; however,
rates required adjustment on October 1, 2022 to continue to proactively address anticipated future capital needs
for long-term infrastructure and government mandates.

The Cable Television Fund will continue to experience significant construction activity, primarily for customer
service connections, during the next few fiscal years to finalize in phases by area of the City, the infrastructure
improvements that will provide the ability to offer broadband/internet speeds unmatched by current competition
and position the Cable Television Fund to offer additional services in the future that require lightning-fast internet.

Contacting the Department's Management

This financial report is intended to provide our consumers and investors with a general overview of the
Department’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to
contact the Department's general manager.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2022
(with comparative totals for September 30, 2021)

Electric Fund Water Fund
Cable

Television Fund 2022 2021

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 16,701,735 $ 4,761,638 $ 7,738,911 $ 29,202,284 $ 31,596,649
Receivables (Note 3) 6,054,882 1,070,912 746,186 7,871,980 8,468,098
Due from City of Wyandotte, Michigan (Note 11) 203 - - 203 376,724
Due from other funds (Note 5) 664 - - 664 20,075
Fuel, materials, supplies, and other inventories 1,126,652 103,315 53,803 1,283,770 1,220,280

Prepaid expenses and other assets 247,734 12,040 9,691 269,465 281,226

Total current assets 24,131,870 5,947,905 8,548,591 38,628,366 41,963,052

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets (Note 8) 2,682,407 - 6,089,131 8,771,538 11,084,187
Property, plant, and equipment: (Note 4)

Assets not subject to depreciation 5,436,200 706,658 8,868,651 15,011,509 10,969,213

Assets subject to depreciation - Net 32,054,292 12,415,105 1,409,896 45,879,293 45,010,430

Total noncurrent assets 40,172,899 13,121,763 16,367,678 69,662,340 67,063,830

Total assets 64,304,769 19,069,668 24,916,269 108,290,706 109,026,882

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Bond refunding loss being amortized 779,658 - - 779,658 813,556
Deferred pension costs (Note 9) 1,561,090 211,531 220,463 1,993,084 -

Deferred OPEB costs (Note 10) 103,626 24,297 21,933 149,856 755,620

Total deferred outflows of
resources 2,444,374 235,828 242,396 2,922,598 1,569,176

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,751,950 123,579 1,087,511 2,963,040 3,477,998
Due to City of Wyandotte, Michigan (Note 11) 28,686 255,135 - 283,821 -
Due to other funds (Note 5) - - 664 664 20,075
Accrued liabilities and other 2,126,600 241,004 5,208 2,372,812 2,421,681
Customer deposits 1,005,122 - 184,925 1,190,047 1,150,393

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 2,152,319 251 600,965 2,753,535 2,623,273

Total current liabilities 7,064,677 619,969 1,879,273 9,563,919 9,693,420

Noncurrent liabilities:
Payable from restricted assets - - 43,459 43,459 824,598
Net pension liability (Note 9) 4,535,532 614,576 640,525 5,790,633 3,241,451
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) 11,117,791 2,606,908 2,353,278 16,077,977 27,735,528

Long-term debt - Net of current portion (Note 6) 21,808,946 286 9,090,647 30,899,879 33,605,431

Total noncurrent liabilities 37,462,269 3,221,770 12,127,909 52,811,948 65,407,008

Total liabilities 44,526,946 3,841,739 14,007,182 62,375,867 75,100,428

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension cost reductions (Note 9) - - - - 1,635,145

Deferred OPEB cost reductions (Note 10) 3,523,353 826,159 745,779 5,095,291 216,803

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,523,353 826,159 745,779 5,095,291 1,851,948

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 14,308,885 13,121,226 5,696,844 33,126,955 28,080,784
Restricted (Note 8) 3,874,022 - 935,763 4,809,785 3,751,908

Unrestricted 515,937 1,516,372 3,773,097 5,805,406 1,810,990

Total net position, as restated
(Note 1)

$ 18,698,844 $ 14,637,598 $ 10,405,704 $ 43,742,146 $ 33,643,682

See notes to financial statements. 10



City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended September 30, 2022
(with comparative totals for year ended September 30, 2021)

Electric Fund Water Fund
Cable

Television Fund 2022 2021

Operating Revenue
Sale of water $ - $ 4,425,270 $ - $ 4,425,270 $ 4,401,545
Sale of electricity 39,642,070 - - 39,642,070 37,181,929
Sales to subscribers - - 11,128,065 11,128,065 11,054,374
Other operating revenue 704,202 11,476 497,741 1,213,419 1,162,800

Total operating revenue 40,346,272 4,436,746 11,625,806 56,408,824 53,800,648

Operating Expenses
Production, pumping, and purification 29,648,374 920,612 - 30,568,986 25,339,786
Distribution 2,507,039 1,120,768 1,429,994 5,057,801 4,517,855
Cable television royalties and retransmission

fees - - 4,960,903 4,960,903 5,062,139
Office and administrative 2,177,779 635,851 601,355 3,414,985 3,337,096
General fringes and other 1,059,905 208,694 2,055,077 3,323,676 3,041,444
Transportation 113,599 38,597 29,065 181,261 157,260
Customer services 324,408 296,094 - 620,502 647,471
Pension and OPEB recovery (5,589,541) (1,216,590) (446,215) (7,252,346) (879,564)
Depreciation 2,868,011 523,268 607,878 3,999,157 4,126,496

Total operating expenses 33,109,574 2,527,294 9,238,057 44,874,925 45,349,983

Operating Income 7,236,698 1,909,452 2,387,749 11,533,899 8,450,665

Nonoperating (Expense) Revenue
Amortization related to long-term debt (12,520) - - (12,520) (12,519)
Interest expense (1,103,509) (44) (344,445) (1,447,998) (1,571,216)
Investment income 7,307 2,964 14,812 25,083 9,650

Total nonoperating (expense)
revenue (1,108,722) 2,920 (329,633) (1,435,435) (1,574,085)

Change in Net Position 6,127,976 1,912,372 2,058,116 10,098,464 6,876,580

Net Position - Beginning of year, as
restated (Note 1) 12,570,868 12,725,226 8,347,588 33,643,682 26,767,102

Net Position - End of year $ 18,698,844 $ 14,637,598 $ 10,405,704 $ 43,742,146 $ 33,643,682

See notes to financial statements. 11



City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2022
(with comparative totals for year ended September 30, 2021)

Electric Fund Water Fund
Cable Television

Fund 2022 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 40,548,464 $ 4,426,549 $ 11,960,548 $ 56,935,561 $ 53,257,275
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and

services (29,589,649) (583,872) (8,129,776) (38,303,297) (31,308,590)
Cash payments to employees for services (6,353,197) (1,974,178) (2,077,654) (10,405,029) (9,874,622)

Net cash provided by
operating activities 4,605,618 1,868,499 1,753,118 8,227,235 12,074,063

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing
Activities

Interfund borrowing and repayments - Net 19,411 (20,075) 664 - -
Payments to City of Wyandotte, Michigan (1,422) - - (1,422) (368,628)

Net cash provided by (used
in) noncapital financing
activities 17,989 (20,075) 664 (1,422) (368,628)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Purchase of capital assets (3,305,209) (1,216,494) (4,388,613) (8,910,316) (8,140,651)
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (3,121,853) (357) (925,384) (4,047,594) (4,385,124)

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities (6,427,062) (1,216,851) (5,313,997) (12,957,910) (12,525,775)

Cash Flows Provided by Investment Activities -
Interest received on investments 7,307 2,964 14,812 25,083 9,650

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash (1,796,148) 634,537 (3,545,403) (4,707,014) (810,690)

Cash - Beginning of year 21,180,290 4,127,101 17,373,445 42,680,836 43,491,526

Cash - End of year $ 19,384,142 $ 4,761,638 $ 13,828,042 $ 37,973,822 $ 42,680,836

Classification of Cash
Cash and investments $ 16,701,735 $ 4,761,638 $ 7,738,911 $ 29,202,284 $ 31,596,649
Restricted assets 2,682,407 - 6,089,131 8,771,538 11,084,187

Total cash $ 19,384,142 $ 4,761,638 $ 13,828,042 $ 37,973,822 $ 42,680,836

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash from Operating Activities

Operating income $ 7,236,698 $ 1,909,452 $ 2,387,749 $ 11,533,899 $ 8,450,665
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 2,868,011 523,268 607,878 3,999,157 4,126,496
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables 202,037 621,614 334,742 1,158,393 (920,097)
Inventory (100,589) 14,017 486 (86,086) (189,888)
Prepaid insurance and other current

assets (77,500) 5,617 10,634 (61,249) 61,082
Accounts payable (12,410) 17,643 (1,063,831) (1,058,598) 1,452,091
Net pension or OPEB liability (6,615,269) (1,666,631) (826,469) (9,108,369) (4,478,337)
Deferrals related to pension or OPEB 1,025,728 450,041 380,254 1,856,023 3,598,773
Accrued and other liabilities 78,912 (6,522) (78,325) (5,935) (26,722)

Total adjustments (2,631,080) (40,953) (634,631) (3,306,664) 3,623,398

Net cash provided by
operating activities $ 4,605,618 $ 1,868,499 $ 1,753,118 $ 8,227,235 $ 12,074,063

See notes to financial statements. 12



City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services (the
"Department") conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP), as applicable to governmental units.

Reporting Entity 

The Department is a department created by the City of Wyandotte, Michigan (the "City") that is governed
and operated independently from the City by the Municipal Services Commission (the "Commission").
The Commission provides electric, water, cable television, and internet services to users in the City and
accounts for these activities in the following separate major funds: Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Cable
Television Fund.

The funds of the Department are included in the basic financial statements of the City at September 30,
2022 as enterprise funds.

Accounting and Reporting Principles 

The Department follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting pronouncements are promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following is a summary of the significant accounting
policies used by the Department:

Report Presentation 

These financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of cash flows. Governmental accounting principles that require
financial reports to include two different perspectives - the government-wide perspective and the fund-
based perspective - do not apply. 

Basis of Accounting 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations.

The operating revenue represents billings to customers based primarily on usage by the Department's
customers. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

Specific Balances and Transactions 

Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand. In addition, the statement of cash flows includes both
restricted and unrestricted cash equivalents.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or market, determined by the average cost method for general
inventory. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as
prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are restricted pursuant to contractual restrictions, grant reserves, and unspent bond
proceeds. Refer to Note 8 for further discussion.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Significant Customers

The electric department has one significant customer, BASF Corporation, representing approximately 18
percent of the electric department's operating revenue for the year ended September 30, 2022.

The water department has one significant customer, BASF Corporation, representing approximately 14
percent of the water department's operating revenue for the year ended September 30, 2022.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the Department as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 

Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset Class
Depreciable Life -

Years

Utility plant 20-25
Transmission 10-15
Pumping 40-50
Purification 20-40
Distribution 10-15
Transportation 4-15
Stores 10-15
Cable equipment 10
Studio 10-15
General 5-10

Long-term Obligations

In the financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are expensed at the time they are incurred. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net
position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)
until then. 

The Department has three items that qualify for reporting in this category. They are deferred charges on
bond refunding loss, deferred pension costs, and deferred OPEB costs. The refunding loss results from
the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and the reacquisition price. The amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. Refer to
Notes 9 and 10 for information related to deferred pension and OPEB costs.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Department has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Refer to Note 10 for information
related to deferred OPEB cost reduction.

Net Position

Net position of the Department is classified in three components. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and is reduced by the current balances of any
outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets. The restricted
component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position that does not
meet the definition of invested in capital or restricted. 

Net Position Flow Assumption

The Department will sometimes fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net
position in the statement of net position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the Department’s policy to consider restricted net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Pension

The Department offers a defined benefit pension plan to its employees. The Department records a net
pension liability for the difference between the total pension liability calculated by the actuary and the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Wyandotte Employees' Retirement System and
additions to/deductions from the pension plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

In addition, the Department provides retirement benefits to all employees hired after October 1, 2006
through a defined contribution plan and retiree health savings plan.

Other Postemployment Benefit Costs

The Department offers retiree health care benefits to retirees. The Department records a net OPEB
liability for the difference between the total OPEB liability calculated by the actuary and the OPEB plan's
fiduciary net position. For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB plan and
additions to/deductions from the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the OPEB plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value except for
money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at
the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost. The net OPEB liability has been
liquidated from department funds from which individual salaries are paid.

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)

It is the Department's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay
benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the Department does not have a
policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the Department. All vacation pay
is accrued when incurred in the statement of net position. 

15



City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Proprietary Funds Operating Classification

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of
proprietary funds is charges to customers for sales or services. Operating expenses for these funds
include the cost of sales or services and administrative expenses and may include depreciation on capital
assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and
expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Emissions Allowance

The Environmental Protection Agency has granted emissions allowances to the Department related to the
emission of certain pollutants. No amounts are recorded at the date of the grant. The Department
estimates the allowances needed for future years. As appropriate, the Department may purchase
additional allowances or sell the estimated future excess allowances. The purchase and sale of
allowances by emission type are accounted for separately and are not offset against transactions
involving allowances of different emission types. Purchased allowances net of proceeds from the sale of
related allowances are recorded as an asset and will be expensed during the applicable period. Proceeds
from the sale of allowances are recognized as income at the time of sale. There were no emissions
allowances purchased in the current year. There were no emission allowances purchased in the current
year. The Department sold $365,000 of emission allowances during the year ended September 30, 2022.

Leases

The Department is a lessee for noncancelable leases of vehicles and equipment. The Department
recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the financial
statements. 

At the commencement of a lease, the Department initially measures the lease liability at the present value
of payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by
the principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount
of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
useful life. 

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the Department determines (1) the discount
rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease
payments. The Department uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the
interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the Department generally uses its estimated
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. The lease term includes the noncancelable
period of the lease. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are composed of
fixed payments and purchase option price that the Department is reasonably certain to exercise. 

The Department monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and
will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly
affect the amount of the lease liability. 
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets, and lease liabilities are reported with long-term debt
on the statement of net position. 

Comparative Data

The basic financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not at the level of detail required for a presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government's financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements, to bring a uniform guidance on how to report public-private and
public-public partnership arrangements. As a result, transferors in public-private or public-public
arrangements will recognize receivables for installment payments; deferred inflows of resources; and,
when applicable, capital assets. Operators will recognize liabilities for installment payments and
intangible right-to-use assets and, when applicable, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities for
assets being transferred. This statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for
availability payment arrangements, in which a government compensates an operator for services such as
designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying asset for a period of time in an
exchange or exchange-like transaction. The provisions of this statement are effective for the
Department’s financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2023.

In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), which defines SBITAs and provides accounting
and financial reporting for SBITAs by governments. This statement requires a government to recognize a
subscription liability and an intangible right-to-use subscription asset for SBITAs. The Department is
currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The
provisions of this statement are effective for the Department's financial statements for the year ending
September 30, 2023.

In April 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022,
which establishes or amends accounting and financial reporting requirements for specific issues related
to financial guarantees, derivative instruments, leases, public-public and public-private partnerships
(PPPs), subscription-based information technology arrangements, the transition from the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), nonmonetary
transactions, pledges of future revenue, the focus of government-wide financial statements, and
terminology. The standard has various effective dates. The Department does not believe this
pronouncement will have a significant impact on its financial statements but is still making a full
evaluation. 

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 100, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections, which enhances the accounting and financial reporting requirements for
accounting changes and error corrections. The provisions of this statement are effective for the
Department's financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2024.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 101, Compensated
Absences, which updates the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences under
a unified model. This statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for
leave that has not been used and leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through
noncash means and establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used. It
also updates disclosure requirements for compensated absences. The provisions of this statement are
effective for the Department's financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2025.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 

During the current year, the Department adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. As a result, the
Department now includes a liability for the present value of payments expected to be made and right-to-
use assets. Lease activity is further described in Note 7. The financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2021 have been restated in order to adopt GASB Statement No. 87. 

The net position as of September 30, 2021, as previously reported, was $33,645,536. After the
adjustment for GASB Statement No. 87, the net position as of September 30, 2021, as restated, is
$33,643,682. 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside
the state of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase
agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two
highest classifications that matures no more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the
State of Michigan or its political subdivisions that are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds
composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in
Michigan. 

The Department has designated three banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted
by the board in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds and
securities of the United States government, commercial paper rated within the two highest classifications
that matures no more than 270 days after the date of purchase, bank accounts, and CDs but not the
remainder of state statutory authority, as listed above. The Department's deposits are in accordance with
statutory authority.

The Department's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in more
detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Department's deposits may not be
returned to it. At year end, the Department had bank deposits of $31,856,441 (checking and savings
accounts) that were uninsured and uncollateralized. The Department's federal depository insurance
coverage is combined with all the deposits of City of Wyandotte, Michigan; hence, the specific coverage
pertaining to the Department cannot be determined. The City of Wyandotte, Michigan (and, therefore, the
Department) does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The organization as a whole believes
that, due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to
insure all deposits. As a result, the Department evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits
funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable
estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest
rates. The Department's investment policy does not restrict investment maturities other than commercial
paper, which can only be purchased with a 270-day maturity.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)

At year end, the Department had the following investments:

Investment Fair Value

Weighted-
average Maturity

(Years)

Primary Government

U.S. Treasury $ 3,439,378 0.47
Municipal bond 249,690 0.09

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The Department has no investment policy that would further limit credit
risk in its investment choices.

As of September 30, 2022, the interest rate risk and credit quality ratings of the Department's investments
are as follows:

Investment Fair Value Rating
Rating

Organization

Primary Government

U.S. Treasury $ 3,439,378 Not rated Not rated
Municipal bond 249,690 AA1 Moody's

Note 3 - Billed and Unbilled Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

2022
Electric Water Cable Total

Billed $ 3,407,382 $ 724,037 $ 827,642 $ 4,959,061
Unbilled 2,743,970 346,875 - 3,090,845
Due from other governmental units 3,530 - 10,544 14,074
Less allowance for doubtful

accounts (100,000) - (92,000) (192,000)

Total $ 6,054,882 $ 1,070,912 $ 746,186 $ 7,871,980

Unbilled accounts receivable from customers represent services that have been provided to customers
through September 30, 2022 for which billings were processed subsequent to year end. 
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity of the Department's business-type activities was as follows:

Balance
September 30,

2021 Reclassifications Additions
Disposals and
Adjustments

Balance
September 30,

2022

Capital assets not being
depreciated - Construction in
progress $ 10,969,213 $ (4,711,890) $ 8,754,186 $ - $ 15,011,509

Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility plant 109,426,270 128,684 - - 109,554,954
Transmission 5,911,181 - - - 5,911,181
Pumping 7,268,948 2,645,664 - - 9,914,612
Purification 3,953,509 - - - 3,953,509
Distribution 75,857,976 1,716,266 - - 77,574,242
Transportation 4,200,597 - - - 4,200,597
Stores 1,156,932 27,746 - - 1,184,678
Cable equipment 4,626,672 176,280 55,785 - 4,858,737
Studio 738,686 8,921 - - 747,607
General 4,080,501 8,329 - - 4,088,830
Leases 202,115 - 100,345 - 302,460

Total capital assets being
depreciated 217,423,387 4,711,890 156,130 - 222,291,407

Accumulated depreciation:
Utility plant 94,588,487 - 1,086,157 - 95,674,644
Transmission 5,902,312 - 3,027 - 5,905,339
Pumping 3,153,163 - 161,660 - 3,314,823
Purification 3,779,725 - 7,676 - 3,787,401
Distribution 51,563,908 - 2,092,315 - 53,656,223
Transportation 3,715,121 - 231,765 - 3,946,886
Stores 976,751 - 17,147 - 993,898
Cable equipment 4,080,182 - 251,164 - 4,331,346
Studio 638,519 - 24,247 - 662,766
General 3,937,300 - 37,965 - 3,975,265
Leases 77,489 - 86,034 - 163,523

Total accumulated
depreciation 172,412,957 - 3,999,157 - 176,412,114

Net capital assets being
depreciated 45,010,430 4,711,890 (3,843,027) - 45,879,293

Net capital assets $ 55,979,643 $ - $ 4,911,159 $ - $ 60,890,802

For the year ended September 30, 2022, depreciation expense was $2,868,011, $523,268, and $607,878
for the Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Cable Television Fund, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 4 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction Commitments

The Department has active construction projects and other purchase commitments at year end. The
Department's commitments (some with contractors/suppliers and others committed based on resolution
of the Commission and, thus, considered a future obligation by management) as of September 30, 2022
are as follows: 

Spent to Date
Remaining

Commitment

3665 11th Street - Building renovation $ 5,913,112 $ 256,574
Fiber to the Home/Premises (FTTH/FTTP)/Headend 6,190,056 4,243,609
GIS, SCADA, OMS 189,253 810,747
AMI transponders - Water 594,042 567,308

Total $ 12,886,463 $ 5,878,238

Note 5 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances is as follows:

Fund Borrowed From Fund Loaned To Amount

Electric Fund Cable Fund $ 664

This balance results from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments
between funds are made. 
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

Note 6 - Long-term Debt

The Department's long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2022 can be summarized as
follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within One
Year

Long-term debt:
Direct borrowings and direct

placements:
Installment purchase

agreements $ 309,663 $ - $ (135,132) $ 174,531 $ 140,190
Cable Revenue Bonds -

Series 2020 10,270,000 - (580,000) 9,690,000 600,000

Total direct borrowings
and direct placements
principal outstanding 10,579,663 - (715,132) 9,864,531 740,190

Other debt:
Electric System Revenue

and Revenue Refunding
Bonds - 2015 Series A 19,205,000 - (1,040,000) 18,165,000 1,090,000

Electric System Revenue
and Revenue Refunding
Bonds - 2015 Series B 5,460,000 - (800,000) 4,660,000 845,000

Total other debt
principal outstanding 24,665,000 - (1,840,000) 22,825,000 1,935,000

Unamortized bond premiums 854,676 - (35,611) 819,065 -

Total long-term debt 36,099,339 - (2,590,743) 33,508,596 2,675,190

Leases (Note 7) 129,365 100,347 (84,894) 144,818 78,345

Total long-term debt $ 36,228,704 $ 100,347 $ (2,675,637) $ 33,653,414 $ 2,753,535

The Department had deferred outflows of $779,658 related to deferred charges on bond refundings at
September 30, 2022. 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations are as follows:

Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements Other Debt

Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 740,190 $ 337,206 $ 1,935,000 $ 1,040,977 $ 4,053,373
2024 654,341 312,762 2,015,000 942,911 3,925,014
2025 645,000 290,763 2,095,000 840,878 3,871,641
2026 665,000 268,100 1,765,000 751,055 3,449,155
2027 690,000 244,650 1,850,000 671,520 3,456,170

2028-2032 3,830,000 839,825 3,435,000 2,768,950 10,873,775
2033-2037 2,640,000 163,800 3,315,000 2,023,375 8,142,175
2038-2042 - - 3,705,000 1,158,625 4,863,625
2043-2047 - - 2,710,000 207,750 2,917,750

Total $ 9,864,531 $ 2,457,106 $ 22,825,000 $ 10,406,041 $ 45,552,678

22



City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 6 - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Interest

For the year ended September 30, 2022, total interest costs incurred were $1,103,509, $44, and
$344,445 for the Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Cable Television Fund, respectively.

Defeased Debt

In 2015, the City defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts' assets and
liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the basic financial statements. At September 30,
2022, $2,295,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased. 

Electric Fund Revenue Bonds

The 2015 Series A and B Revenue and Refunding Bonds are payable out of the net revenue before
capital contributions of the Electric Fund. During the year, net operating revenue, as defined, of the
system was $4,541,149. Fiscal year 2023 debt service requirements total $2,975,977. The City of
Wyandotte, Michigan has no liability for these bonds if the net revenue pledged should prove insufficient. 

Cable Television Fund Revenue Bonds

The Series 2020 Cable System Revenue Bonds are payable out of the net revenue before capital
contributions of the Cable Television Fund. During the year, net operating revenue, as defined, of the
system was $2,574,224. Fiscal year 2023 debt service requirements total $933,900. The City of
Wyandotte, Michigan has no liability for these bonds if the net revenue pledged should prove insufficient. 

Note 7 - Leases

The Department leases certain assets from various third parties. The assets leased include vehicles and
equipment used in electric utility operations. Payments are fixed monthly. 

Lease asset activity of the Department is included in Note 4.

Future principal and interest payment requirements related to the Department’s lease liability at
September 30, 2022 are as follows:

Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 78,345 $ 3,543 $ 81,888
2024 22,257 1,813 24,070
2025 20,654 1,118 21,772
2026 21,335 436 21,771
2027 2,227 5 2,232

Total $ 144,818 $ 6,915 $ 151,733

Regulated Leases 

The Department is party to certain regulated leases, as defined by GASB Statement No. 87. The leased
assets include electric poles and are regulated under Mich. Comp. Laws Service § 484.2361, which
regulates attachment to the Department’s electric utility poles.

During the year ended September 30, 2022, the Department recognized $20,299 in lease revenue from
the regulated leases.

Future expected minimum payments related to the Department’s regulated leases at September 30, 2022
are expected at $20,354 in perpetuity.
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Note 8 - Restricted Net Position

Restricted assets consist of the following:

Electric Fund
Cable

Television Fund Total

Restricted working capital - MPPA $ 2,296,724 $ - $ 2,296,724
Restricted grant reserves 385,683 - 385,683
Unspent bond proceeds - 5,153,368 5,153,368
Debt service - 935,763 935,763

Total restricted assets 2,682,407 6,089,131 8,771,538

Less unspent bond proceeds - (5,153,368) (5,153,368)
Plus energy optimization surplus 1,191,615 - 1,191,615

Total restricted net position $ 3,874,022 $ 935,763 $ 4,809,785

All assets legally restricted relate to activity of the Electric Fund and Cable Television Fund. When an
expense is incurred that allows the use of restricted assets, those assets are applied before utilizing any
unrestricted assets.

The assets restricted for MPPA working capital in the Electric Fund are contractually restricted by way of
an energy services agreement entered into with the MPPA by the Department in October 2012.

The assets restricted for grant reserves in the Electric Fund represent the balances outstanding as of
September 30, 2022 related to grant funds advanced to the Department by the Department of Energy in
2011 to be used for loan loss reserves and interest rate buy-downs on approved energy-related projects
for qualifying customers of the Department.

The unspent bond proceeds in the Cable Television Fund relate to the Cable System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2020. At September 30, 2022, there was $43,459 of liabilities to be paid from the Cable Television
Fund restricted bond proceeds.

The assets restricted for debt service in the Cable Television Fund are pursuant to the 2019 cable system
revenue bond ordinance for revenue bond debt service. In conjunction with the bond ordinance, the
Commission passed a resolution to restrict net position in the Cable Television Fund of $935,763, which
represents the maximum annual debt service requirement on the Cable Television Fund bonds. This
amount has been reported as restricted net position in the Cable Television Fund at September 30, 2022.

The Department charges energy optimization fees, for which the funds are required to be spent on
energy optimization programs. The surplus from these energy optimization fees has been reported as
restricted net position in the Electric Fund at September 30, 2022.

Note 9 - Pension Plans

Plan Description

The Department participates in the City of Wyandotte Employees' Retirement System, a defined benefit
pension plan that covers all employees of the City hired before October 1, 2006. The plan is a cost-
sharing defined benefit pension plan administered by the City of Wyandotte Employees' Retirement
System Board. The City of Wyandotte Employees' Retirement System's financial report (which includes
financial statements and required supplemental information for the system) is presented in the City of
Wyandotte, Michigan's September 30, 2022 annual financial report, which may be obtained at the City's
offices at 3200 Biddle Avenue.
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Note 9 - Pension Plans (Continued)

The Department also provides pension benefits that cover all employees of the Department hired on or
after October 1, 2006 through a defined contribution plan administered by City of Wyandotte, Michigan. In
a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment
earnings. Employees are eligible to participate from the date of employment. As established by a
commission-approved resolution, the Department contributes 10 percent of gross earnings, and the
employees contribute 5 percent. New employees' accounts are fully vested after five years of service.
Employees who choose to switch from the defined benefit plan to the defined contribution plan will be
vested immediately. 

Benefits Provided

The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.
Benefit terms are established and amended by contractual agreements between the City and employee
union representation. Retirement benefits are calculated as follows:

Final average compensation (FAC) is multiplied by 1.65, 1.7, or 1.7 (1.5 for service years subsequent to
January 1, 2022) percent for nonexempt, exempt, and hourly members, respectively. FAC is calculated
as the highest 3 consecutive years out of the last 10 years. 

Plan members with 30 years (25 years for the Department's hourly employees) of service or age 60 with
10 years of service are eligible to retire. Department employees have a mandatory retirement age of 70
years. Salaried (exempt and nonexempt) plan members with 25 years of service, or age 55 with 10 years
of service, are eligible for early retirement. All plan members at age 25 with 10 years of service are
vested. All plan members are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service and for duty-
related disability benefits upon hire. Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as
retirement benefits but are payable immediately without actuarial reduction. Death benefits equal the
worker's compensation benefit.

The plan is closed to new entrants.

Contributions

Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits arising on
account of employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, the
retirement system retains an independent actuary to determine the annual contribution. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan
members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
Department's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended September 30, 2022 was 84.04
percent of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the Department were $1,220,878 for the year
ended September 30, 2022. Department employees are not required to contribute.

Net Pension Liability

At September 30, 2022, the Department reported a liability of $5,790,633 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2022, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
September 30, 2021, which used update procedures to roll forward the estimated liability to September
30, 2022. The Department's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Department's
actuarially required contribution for the year ended September 30, 2022 relative to all other contributing
employers. At September 30, 2022, the Department’s proportion was 19.2 percent, which was a decrease
of 5 percent from its proportion measured as of September 30, 2021. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the Department recognized pension expense of $537,964 from
all plans, which includes defined contribution plan expense of $396,134. 
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Note 9 - Pension Plans (Continued)

At September 30, 2022, the Department reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 25,616 $ -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan

investments 1,967,468 -

Total $ 1,993,084 $ -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Years Ending
September 30 Amount

2023 $ 470,328
2024 365,850
2025 421,362
2026 735,544

Total $ 1,993,084

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the September 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using an inflation
assumption of 2.50 percent, assumed salary increases (including inflation) of 3.0 percent to 8.1 percent,
an investment rate of return (net of investment expenses) of 7.0 percent, and the RP-2014 mortality table
projected seven years with scale MP-2014. 

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that Department contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Note 9 - Pension Plans (Continued)

Investment Rate of Return

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return as of the September 30, 2022 measurement date for
each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the
investment footnote, are summarized in the following tables:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Domestic fixed income %37.00 %2.39
Domestic equity 36.00 6.55
International equity 15.00 8.74
Hedged strategies 10.00 2.96
Cash or cash equivalents 2.00 (0.22)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Department, calculated using the discount rate of
7.0 percent, as well as what the Department's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

1 Percentage
Point Decrease

(6.0%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.0%)

1 Percentage
Point Increase

(8.0%)

Net pension liability of the Department $ 7,485,427 $ 5,790,633 $ 4,334,763

Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Plan Description

The Department provides OPEB for all employees who meet eligibility requirements. The plan is a cost-
sharing plan administered by the City of Wyandotte, Michigan City Council. The City of Wyandotte
Retiree Health Care Plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at the City's
offices at 3200 Biddle Avenue.

Benefits Provided

The City of Wyandotte Retiree Health Care Plan provides health care benefits for retirees and their
dependents. Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of the benefits is
covered by the plan. The plan is closed to nonunion exempt and nonexempt employees hired after
October 1, 2011 and union employees hired after October 1, 2013. These employees are covered under
a health savings account.

Contributions

Retiree health care costs are recognized when paid by the Department on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
Department has no obligation to make contributions in advance of when insurance premiums are due for
payment. Plan members are not required to contribute to the plan. Contributions to the plan from the
Department were $696,478 for the year ended September 30, 2022.
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Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability

At September 30, 2022, the Department reported a liability of $16,077,977 for its proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2022, and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
September 30, 2021, which used update procedures to roll forward the estimated liability to September
30, 2022. The Department's proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the Department's
actuarially required contribution for the year ended September 30, 2022 relative to all other contributing
employers. At September 30, 2022, the Department’s proportion was 23.1 percent, which was no change
from September 30, 2021. 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the Department recognized OPEB recovery of $(5,476,821). 

At September 30, 2022, the Department reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience  $ - $ (3,054,321)
Changes in assumptions 58,824 (2,040,970)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan

investments 91,032 -

Total $ 149,856 $ (5,095,291)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Years Ending
September 30 Amount

2023 $ (5,016,665)
2024 17,623
2025 18,555
2026 35,052

Total $ (4,945,435)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the September 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using an inflation
assumption of 2.75 percent; assumed salary increases (including inflation) of 3.0 percent to 8.1 percent;
an investment rate of return (net of investment expenses) of 6.0 percent; a health care cost trend rate of
7.5 percent, decreasing annually to an ultimate rate of 3.5 percent; and the RP-2014 mortality table
projected seven years with scale MP-2014.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.40 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that department contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 
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Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)

Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees through the year
2023. Therefore, the discount rate was determined by blending the long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments 4.40 percent with the current yield for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, which currently stands at 4.40 percent (as
reported in Fidelity Index's 20-Year Municipal GO AA Index as of September 30, 2022.

Investment Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
geometric real rates of return as of the September 30, 2021 measurement date for each major asset
class included in the OPEB plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment footnote, are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Domestic equity %32.00 %6.07
International equity 32.50 5.51
Domestic fixed income 27.00 1.54
Real assets 4.50 3.74
Real estate 3.00 5.34
Cash 1.00 0.74

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Department, calculated using the discount rate of 4.40
percent, as well as what the Department's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

1 Percentage
Point Decrease

(3.40%)

Current
Discount Rate

(4.40%)

1 Percentage
Point Increase

(5.40%)

Net OPEB liability of the Department $ 18,140,975 $ 16,077,977 $ 14,370,592

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Department, calculated using the health care cost
trend rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the Department's net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a health care cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current rate:

1 Percentage
Point Decrease

(6.50%)

Current Health
Care Cost Trend

Rate (7.50%)

1 Percentage
Point Increase

(8.50%)

Net OPEB liability of the Department $ 14,164,122 $ 16,077,977 $ 18,405,573

Assumption Changes

The discount rate increased from 2.19 percent to 4.40 percent for the year ended September 30, 2022. 
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Note 11 - Related Party Transactions

City-owned facilities are users of the Department's electric and water services. The Department includes
its revenue charges from the sale of such services. Pursuant to the revenue bond ordinance, the
Department charges the City for street and public safety lighting services. In turn, the City has charged
the Department an equal amount for services in lieu of property taxes. In 2006, the Department also
began paying the City a fee for use of city services and infrastructure. The Department also provides
billing and cash collection services for the City's sewer use charges, which are then remitted to the City
upon collection. The Department earns a related collection fee for these services.

Included in the Department's cable expenses is a franchise fee payable to the City equal to 5 percent of
the gross revenue of the Cable Television Fund for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Beginning in 2009, the Water Department began paying the City a franchise fee based on a calculation of
the reasonable costs incurred by the City that are attributable to the Department.

A summary of these transactions with the City for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

2022 2021

Department revenue:
Electric and water services $ 632,593 $ 628,040
Street and public safety lighting 653,831 652,552
Collection fee 36,051 58,797

Department expenses:
In lieu of property taxes (653,831) (652,552)
Cable television franchise fees (538,978) (534,508)
Water franchise fee (181,125) (175,000)
City services (955,057) (938,975)

Remittances to the City for sewage use charge collections (3,350,000) (4,627,914)
(Payable to) receivable from City of Wyandotte, Michigan - Sewage

Disposal Fund (255,135) 376,676
(Payable to) receivable from City of Wyandotte, Michigan - Solid Waste

Disposal Fund (28,483) 48

Note 12 - Risk Management

The Department is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,
and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The
Department has purchased commercial insurance for claims related to general liability and medical
benefits. The Department is partially uninsured for workers' compensation claims. Settled claims relating
to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. 

Workers' Compensation

All claims incurred are the responsibility of the Department up to $2,000,000 per employee (in the case of
disease) or $2,000,000 per accident (for bodily injury). The Department has purchased commercial
insurance coverage for claims incurred, which exceed the amounts previously described. 

The Department estimates the liability for workers' compensation claims that have been incurred through
the end of the fiscal year, including claims that have been reported and those that have not yet been
reported. These estimates are recorded in the Department's Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Cable
Television Fund. 
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Note 12 - Risk Management (Continued)

Changes in the estimated liability were as follows:

Estimated liability - October 1, 2020 $ 102,035
Estimated claims incurred - Net of changes in estimate (44,834)
Claim payments (3,705)

Estimated liability - September 30, 2021 53,496

Estimated claims incurred 27,925
Claim payments (27,925)
Estimated claims incurred - Net of changes in estimate (4,923)

Estimated liability - September 30, 2022 $ 48,573

Note 13 - Contingent Liabilities

The Department was listed as a potentially responsible party for the remedial sediment cleanup of the
Upper Trenton Channel Sediment Site (the “Site”) on the Detroit River. As a result, the Department
decided to participate in a voluntary and nonbinding allocation process. The Site is eligible to participate
in a voluntary Great Lakes cleanup program targeting contaminated sediments known as the Great Lakes
Legacy Act (the "Legacy Act"). The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency entered into a Legacy Act
project agreement with other nonfederal sponsor partners for completion of the remedial design of the
Site. The remedial design will guide the remedial action for the removal/cover of contaminated sediment
from target areas at the Site to support successful construction of the remedy that meets the objectives
and performance criteria. A third-party consultant has prepared a preliminary cost estimate for the
remedial activities. At this time, the process to allocate the liability to the potentially responsible parties
has commenced but has not been finalized.

The Department continues to be involved in various contingent matters arising in the normal course of
operations. While insurance coverage and other potential remedies are available in certain circumstances
to varying degrees, no opinion can currently be given as to the ultimate outcome of these matters. No
provision has been made for the ultimate liability, if any, that may result from the resolution of these
matters.
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City of Wyandotte, Michigan Department of Municipal Services

Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Department's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

City of Wyandotte Employees' Retirement System

Last Eight Fiscal Years

Years Ended September 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Department's proportion of the
net pension liability %19.20000 %24.20000 %25.60000 %25.90000 %27.50000 %26.80000 %23.00000 %20.10000

Department's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability $ 5,790,633 $ 3,241,451 $ 6,332,416 $ 7,379,709 $ 7,816,872 $ 7,808,813 $ 7,294,656 $ 6,562,394

Department's covered payroll $ 1,470,877 $ 1,583,005 $ 1,771,826 $ 1,830,998 $ 1,992,720 $ 2,136,740 $ 2,016,799 $ 2,698,824

Department's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its
covered payroll %393.69 %204.77 %357.39 %403.04 %392.27 %365.45 %361.69 %243.16

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension
liability %68.10 %85.87 %74.13 %69.75 %69.97 %69.10 %66.40 %65.30
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Schedule of Department Contributions

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Years Ended September 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,220,878 $ 1,417,713 $ 1,319,318 $ 1,321,873 $ 1,300,341 $ 1,166,654 $ 888,524 $ 856,067 $ 796,272 $ 888,456
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,220,878 1,417,713 1,319,318 1,321,873 1,300,341 1,166,654 888,524 856,067 796,272 888,456

Contribution Deficiency $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Covered Payroll $ 1,470,877 $ 1,583,005 $ 1,771,826 $ 1,830,998 $ 1,992,720 $ 2,136,740 $ 2,016,799 $ 2,698,824 $ 2,816,681 $ 3,649,775

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll %83.00 %89.56 %74.46 %72.19 %65.25 %54.60 %44.06 %31.72 %28.27 %24.34

Notes to Schedule of Department Contributions

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are
reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar
Remaining amortization period 14 years
Asset valuation method 4-year smoothed market value
Inflation 2.50 percent
Salary increase 3.0 to 8.1 percent
Investment rate of return 7.00 percent
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates there are specific to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality RP-2014 Mortality table projected 7 years with scale MP-2014
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Department's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

City of Wyandotte Retiree Health Care Plan

Last Six Fiscal Years

Years Ended September 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Department's proportion of the net OPEB
liability %23.10000 %23.10000 %25.20000 %25.20000 %25.20000 %25.20000

Department's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability $ 16,077,977 $ 27,735,528 $ 29,122,900 $ 25,926,799 $ 22,281,032 $ 20,454,127

Department's covered-employee payroll $ 1,549,091 $ 1,627,658 $ 1,794,433 $ 1,824,314 $ 1,704,773 $ 1,772,744

Department's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll %1,037.90 %1,704.01 %1,622.96 %1,421.18 %1,306.98 %1,153.81

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
total OPEB liability %3.97 %2.49 %1.90 %2.07 %2.90 %2.51
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of OPEB Contributions

City of Wyandotte Retiree Health Care Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Years Ended September 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually required
contribution $ 1,583,263 $ 1,583,298 $ 1,548,275 $ 1,548,307 $ 1,548,307 $ 1,947,495 $ 1,943,281 $ 1,943,297 $ 1,625,575 $ 1,625,587

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required
contribution 696,478 653,904 723,205 809,486 843,669 1,008,055 913,342 670,437 957,464 726,637

Contribution deficiency $ (886,785) $ (929,394) $ (825,070) $ (738,821) $ (704,638) $ (939,440) $ (1,029,939) $ (1,272,860) $ (668,111) $ (898,950)

Department's covered-employee
payroll $ 1,549,091 $ 1,627,658 $ 1,794,433 $ 1,824,314 $ 1,704,773 $ 1,772,744 $ - $ - $ - $ -

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll %44.96 %40.17 %40.30 %44.37 %49.49 %56.86 %- %- %- %-
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September 30, 2022 and 2021

Pension Information

Benefit Changes

In 2016, the Department offered an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) of 5 additional years of service in
exchange for retiring immediately to 18 employees with more than 20 years of service. Of those, 11 retired under
the provisions of the program.

In 2022, the benefit multiplier for the Department's hourly employees was decreased from 1.70 percent to 1.50
percent for service after January 1, 2022.

Changes in Assumptions

In 2015, mortality rates were updated from the 1984 Group Annuity Mortality Table to the RP-2014 Mortality
Table, investment return was lowered from 7.5 percent to 7.0 percent, and wage inflation was lowered from 4.5
percent to 3.0 percent.

There were no changes of benefit assumptions in 2022. 

OPEB Information

Benefit Changes

There were no changes of benefit terms in 2022. 

Changes in Assumptions

In 2017, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 3.08 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 3.50 percent.

In 2018, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 3.50 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 3.83 percent.

In 2019, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 3.83 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.75 percent.

In 2020, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.75 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.41 percent. Also, the health care cost
trend rate was changed to 8 percent for 2020, decreasing 0.50 to 0.75 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 3.5
percent for 2031 and later years.

In 2021, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.41 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.19 percent.

In 2022, the beginning of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 2.19 percent, and the
end of year total OPEB liability was based on a single discount rate of 4.40 percent.
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February 28, 2023

Mayor Robert DeSana
Wyandotte City Council
3131 Biddle Avenue
Wyandotte, Michigan 48192

Dear Mayor DeSana and City Council:

On Thursday, March 23rd,  Washington Elementary will be holding a “Literacy Walk” to help
support our classroom libraries.  We are requesting to have Superior Blvd., between 14th and 15th

Streets closed between the hours of 8:45 am – 11:00 am on that date.

We are looking forward to hearing from you regarding this matter so that we can continue to
make final plans for our walk.

Sincerely,

Kristin McMaster
Principal

#3



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #3 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
BE IT RESOLVED that Council approves the request of Kirsten McMaster, Principal of Washington 
Elementary School, to close Superior Blvd., between 14th and 15th streets on March 23, 2023 from 8:45am - 
11am, for the Washington Elementary "Literacy Walk". 
 
BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the organization will complete and submit a hold harmless agreement, to be 
prepared by the Department of Legal Affairs, prior to the event date. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 



#4



 

 

RESOLUTION 
  

Item Number: #4 
Date: March 13, 2023 

  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
WHEREAS, the Wyandotte Knights of Columbus Council #1802 is requesting permission to 
solicit donations in the annual "Mentally Impaired Drive", also known as the "Tootsie Roll 
Drive", on March 31st thru April 2nd, 2023. 
WHEREAS, the fundraising event will consist of soliciting donations from motorists stopped at 
traffic signals at the intersections of Eureka and Fort, Fort and Northline, and the Eureka 
turnarounds by persons wearing vests that clearly identify the Knights of Columbus. 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council permits the Knights of Columbus Council #1802 to solicit 
donations as part of the “Tootsie Roll Drive”, provided the organization complies with all 
regulations set forth in PA 112 of 2017, including the submission of a Liability Insurance 
Certificate in the amount of $500,000, and signs a Hold Harmless Agreement as prepared by the 
Department of Legal Affairs 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 







 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 5  

  

ITEM: Appointment to Cultural and Historical Commission 

  
PRESENTER: Robert A. DeSana, Mayor 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: Section 2-113 of the Wyandotte Code of Ordinance establishes a Cultural & 
Historical Commission consisting of eleven members appointed by the mayor, subject to the 
approval of the council. The term of each member shall be four (4) years expiring in 
December.   
 
Jaclyn Malnar fulfilled her term in December 2022 and is not seeking to be 
reappointed.  Therefore, Mayor DeSana is recommending that Paul Nucci of 2223 10th St. be 
appointed to fill the vacancy.  

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To encourage and respect citizen participation and provide 
transparency in all city matters and to comply with and enforce all the requirements of our laws 
and regulations. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Concur with Mayor DeSana's recommendation to appoint Paul 
Nucci to the Cultural and Historical Commission with a term to expire December 2026. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER:  

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Paul Nucci Application 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #5 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
WHEREAS, Jaclyn Malnar has fulfilled her term on the Cultural and Historical Commission and is not seeking 
to be reappointed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council thank Ms. Malnar for her service; 
 
RESOLVED the City Council that Council hereby CONCURS with the recommendation of Mayor DeSana to 
appoint Paul Nucci of 2223 10th St., Wyandotte, MI  48192 to the Cultural and Historical Commission.  Term 
to expire December 2026.   
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 



Boards and Commissions Application Page | 1 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE, MICHIGAN 
APPLICATION FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

A separate application is required for each board or commission you wish to join. 
Applications remain active for one year from the date of submittal.  

Resumes are encouraged and may be attached to your completed application. 

Name of Board or Commission for which you are applying 

Name 

Home Address: Work Address 

Home Phone Work Phone 

Cell Phone Email 

Please note your preferred method(s) of contact 

 Home Phone    Work Phone    Cell Phone    Email

Residency, property or business ownership is required for most boards and commissions. 

 I am a resident. If so, for how many years? _______________

 I am a property owner. If so, for how many years? _______________

 I am a business owner. If so, for how many years? _______________

Provide a brief biography including your skills, background and expertise, as well as involvement in 
the community, professional or other nonprofit organizations that are specifically applicable to this 
board or commission.  

Paul Nucci 

2223 10th Street

734 395 5993

paulnucci@gmail.com

X

X 27 months

Cultural & Historical Commission

Ann Arbor, MI

734 395 5993

I served as an operation chair for the (now defunct) Ypsilanti Heritage Festival. The YHF celebrated the 
extensive history and legacy of the Ypsilanti community. I held this chair position for five years. Other 
volunteer efforts include:
PRIDE Ypsilanti;  People Restoring Image and Developing the Environment; a day of community cleaning 
and restoration
Huron River Watershed Council
Meals on Wheels of Ann Arbor
Habitat for Humanity
Humane Society of Huron Valley
I am also a member of the Freemasons; Westgate-Cyrus 520 chapter out of Trenton. The masons 
volunteer extensively each year for different organizations.
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Describe any experiences that led to your desire to serve the community. 

Employment: List your most recent employment experiences. 

Company 
Name/Location 

Position Duties Dates of Employment 

Education: List your most recent educational experiences. 

Educational Institution/School Certificate/Degree Received Dates 

Volunteerism: List your most recent volunteer experiences. 

Organization Role Dates 

Supplemental Information: Please review our Guidelines for Boards and Commissions for the desired qualifications for 
each board and commission. Check the appropriate box or boxes to indicate whether you have experience or professional 
credentials that may be needed to fill a specific seat.  

University of Michigan Lecturer Employee since 2017

Eastern Michigan University Masters: Communication

As I become more entrenched in this community, I seek to volunteer in a way that would benefit 
myself and the board position I seek. I consider myself a student of history and enjoy learning, 
sharing and preserving the unique heritage of the community in which I reside.
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Some boards and commissions are a mix of citizens with certain qualifications and others are citizens representing the 
general public. Even if you do not have any of the experience or professional background listed below, the community 
urges you to apply for consideration. Wyandotte needs citizens with diverse backgrounds on its boards and commissions. 

Important Public Records Information: All information submitted in this application is public information and subject to 
disclosure in response to a public records request made pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. Please contact the 
Clerk at 734-324-4560 or clerk@wyandottemi.gov if you have any questions or concerns about the disclosure of specific 
information.  

Truth and Accuracy: I certify that the information contained on this form is accurate and complete to the best of my 
knowledge. I understand that all information disclosed on this form will be available to the public as part of a Freedom of 
Information Act request. 

__________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Applicant’s Signature  Date 

Return completed forms to 
Office of the Mayor, City of Wyandotte, Michigan, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Suite 300, Wyandotte, MI 48192 

Please check below if you have experience in: 
 Advertising/Marketing/Public Relations
 Architecture/Engineering
 Arts/Culture/History
 AutoCAD/Drafting/GIS
 Business
 Coaching/Sports
 Construction/Carpentry
 Electrical work/contracting
 Education
 Event Planning
 Forestry
 Horticulture
 Landscape Architecture
 Law
 Planning/Zoning
 Property Maintenance/Management
 Plumbing work/contracting
 Real Estate/Development
 Gardening/Landscaping
 Government

Paul A. Nucci 10/16/22

mailto:clerk@wyandottemi.gov


 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 6  

  

ITEM: Purchase of Police Vehicles 

  
PRESENTER: Brian Zalewski-Chief of Polce 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A 

  
BACKGROUND: Four of our police patrol vehicles are in need of replacement due to high 
mileage, mechanical wear, and near the end of their police service. I am requesting approval to 
purchase four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Police Package Tahoes from Berger Chevrolet in Grand 
Rapids, MI. Berger Chevrolet holds the State of Michigan contract for Chevrolet vehicles 
through MIDEAL. The cost of each Police Tahoe is $39,987.00, with the total cost of four 
vehicles being $159,948.00.This vehicle purchase was approved in the 2022/2023 fiscal year 
police department budget.  
 
The Police Commission reviewed and approved this purchase at their February 28th, 2023, 
meeting.  

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: Maintaining our fleet of patrol vehicles enables our police 
officers to patrol throughout the City of Wyandotte and effectively respond to calls for service 
from our residents, which is consistent with the strategic plan. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: City Council approval to purchase (4) Pollice Package Chevrolet 
Tahoe patrol vehicles. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The funds for the purchase of these 
police vehicles are available in the Capital Improvement Vehicles Account of 402-301-850- 
530. 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by City Council, the vehicles will be ordered and 
once delivered, the necessary equipment will be installed and then assigned for service. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. 2023 Police Tahoe Price Bid-Berger Chevrolet 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #6 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council concurs with the Chief of Police to purchase 
four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Police Tahoes from Berger Chevrolet of Grand Rapids for the total amount of $ 
159,948.00. which was approved in the 2022/2023 fiscal year budget and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY 
THE CITY COUNCIL that these expenditures will be paid from the Capital Improvement Vehicle account of 
402-301-850-530. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 







 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 7  

  

ITEM: Business License Application - Mothra Tattoo Studios LLC 3008 First Street 

  
PRESENTER: Larry Stec, City Clerk 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: Larry Stec, City Clerk 

  
BACKGROUND: A business license application was received by the Clerk's Office for 
Mothra Tattoo Studios, LLC at 3008 First Street. Per the Wyandotte Code of Ordinances, 
Section 133.003, tattoo licenses must be approved by City Council after being reviewed and 
approved by the Police Chief. The Police Chief approved the license application on 3/8/2023. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with local ordinances regarding licensing of 
businesses within the City of Wyandotte. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Approve license for Mothra Tatto Studio, LLC, pending all 
state, County, and local requirements are met and submitted to the City Clerk. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: None 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Issue license to applicant once all inspections and approvals are 
submitted. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Mothra Tattoo Application Approval_PD 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #7 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
BE IT RESOLVED that the license application from Dan Mysliwiec of Mothra Tattoo at 3008 First Street is 
hereby approved; AND 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council authorizes the City Clerk to issue the proper license, pending all 
state, County, and local requirements are met and payment is made and submitted to the City Clerk.  
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 













 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 8  

  

ITEM: Hiring: Clerk Typist I - Engineering and Building Department 

  
PRESENTER: Anne M. Goudy, Human Resource Specialist 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A 

  
BACKGROUND: The resignation of a Clerk Typist I occurred in the Engineering and 
Building Department.  Based on a review of the City’s current resources, organizational 
structure, and staffing expectations, the filling of this position appears necessary to provide 
effective services to the citizens of the City of Wyandotte. As such, the hiring of Fox Foster is 
recommended.  Mr. Foster has been working part time within the Engineering and Building 
Department since January 31, 2023.  Mr. Foster has quickly learned the job aspects and 
responsibilities and has excelled in the position. Mr. Foster possesses the necessary 
qualifications and has been recommended for full-time hire.  

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To provide the finest services and quality of life. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: The undersigned recommends approval of the hiring. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The employee's compensation is 
already budgeted and included in various payroll accounts and with no budget amendment 
necessary. 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The City's Administrative Office will coordinate the hiring. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Fox Foster Application & Resume 
2. Employment Offer - Foster 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #8 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that Council acknowledges receipt of the communication from the 
Human Resource Specialist regarding the hiring of a Clerk Typist I-Class Code 25C for the Engineering and 
Building Department; AND 
 
CONCURS with the recommendation therein and hereby declares said position vacant and authorizes the filling 
of such vacancy and 
 
FURTHER, RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council approves the hiring of Fox Foster as a 
Clerk Typist I at Class Code 25C within the Engineering and Building Department effective March 14, 2023. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 















* Contingent upon the approval of the Mayor and City Council  

 

Fox Foster 

Employment Offer * 

 

Status: Hired as a permanent, full-time, at-will employee of the City of 

Wyandotte 

     

Salary Classification: Class Code 25C of the City of Wyandotte Non-Union Classification 

System 

Salary Range:    $29,348.80 - $35,318.40 

Starting Salary: $32,219.20 

Employee will be eligible for any general increases granted to 

non-union administrative employees. 

 

Retirement Benefits: Defined Contribution Plan (401A) through ICMA Retirement 

Corporation 

- Employer contribution – 10% 

- Employee contribution – 5% 

 

Health Insurance: Two Options (Includes Dental & Vision Coverage) 

1. BC/BS Community Blue PPO Plan III ($15/$30                            

drug rider) 

2. Blue Care Network HMO ($15/$30 drug rider) 

Employee 20% co-payment of premiums required.  Payment-in-

lieu of health insurance coverage of $400/month (reduced by 

actual cost of dental/vision if selected). 

 

Retiree Health Insurance:  Health Savings Plan 

- Employer contribution - $50/per pay period 

- Employee contribution - $50/per pay period 

Long-Term Disability 

Insurance:    Benefit level of 50% of salary covered by the City 

 

Life Insurance:   $40,000 coverage (premiums paid by City) 

 

Sick Time Earned:   One (1) sick day per month worked 

 

Vacation Time Earned:  0 through 5 years of service - 12 days 

6 through 10 years of service - 15 days 

11 through 15 years of service - 18 days 

16 through 20 years of service - 21 days  

21 through 25 years of service - 24 days  

26 years + years of service - 24 days plus an additional 1/2 day per 

year for each year of continuous service over 25 years. 

 

Personal Leave Days:  Three (3) days per year 

 

Eligible immediately for:  Section 457 deferred compensation program 

     Section 125 Cafeteria Plan 



 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 9  

  

ITEM: McKinley School Redevelopment Proposal - Safeway Acquisition Co. 

  
PRESENTER: Joe Gruber, DDA Director 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: Safeway Acquisition Company completed their Developer Responsibilities 
as part of their Right of Entry and Access Agreement executed in November 2022. They have 
submitted a proposal for a rehabilitation of the existing building into a 37-unit market rate 
apartment building which is attached for your consideration. The City is proposing a two-phase 
development that would first focus only on the sale and redevelopment of the former McKinley 
School. The adjacent greenspace and playground space will be retained by the City. If 
successful in delivering the Phase One Project, the developers will then have an opportunity 
(first right of refusal) to purchase the remaining property; construct owner-occupied, single-
family homes on the greenspace; and to renovate the entire playground space which will remain 
publicly accessible. Both the Phase One Project and Phase Two Project will be subject to the 
approval of the Building & Engineering Department, Planning Commission, and City Council. 
If approved tonight, the City will proceed with drafting and negotiating a Development and 
Purchase Agreement with Safeway Acquisition Co. for the redevelopment of McKinley School 
that reflects these terms. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To advocate for our heritage and our economic development. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Asking City Council to accept the Proposal from Safeway 
Acquisition Company and to proceed negotiating the Development and Purchase 
Agreement for McKinley School in accordance with the terms proposed, subject to City 
Attorney approval. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Sale price of building and property is 
$1.00, provided both Phase One and Phase Two projects are completed in accordance with the 
development agreement. 
 
Using the rents provided by the developer with 37 units at $950 to $1,500/unit: AV/TV 
projection = $1,250,000 x current tax rate of 71.3982 = estimated $89,247.75 in total annual 
taxes. 
City Operating 11.5573 + City Operated Voted 2.8932 + City Debt 2.4129 = 16.8634 City mils 
= estimated $21,079.25 local annual taxes. 
 
The estimated total and local annual taxes for Phase Two Project and single family home 
development has not been completed. 

  IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: DDA Director, City Attorney, City Engineer and City 
Administrator to finalize Purchase and Development Agreement and to facilitate the 
redevelopment of the McKinley School. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. McKinley Apt Developer w floor plan 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #9 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
WHEREAS, Safeway Acquisition Company has successfully completed and delivered the provisions outlined 
in item 1. “Access by Grantee” and the attachment titled “Safeway Acquisition Company: Developer 
Responsibilities” in the Right of Entry and Access Agreement signed and executed by  Mayor Pro Tempore and 
the City Clerk on November 14th, 2022, and; 
 
WHEREAS the Mayor, City Council and the City of Wyandotte have all received and reviewed Purchaser’s 
Summary of Findings for redevelopment of the former McKinley School (640 Plum Street), the adjacent green 
space, playground space, and parking lots (together hereunto referred to as “The Property”) submitted by the 
Purchaser on February 6th, 2023; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby accept the Proposal from Safeway Acquisition 
Company; and authorize final negotiations for the Development and Purchase Agreement for McKinley School 
in accordance with the terms proposed. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
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CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 10  

  

ITEM: Alley Encroachment at 1165-1167 McKinley Street 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: The property owner of 1165-1167 McKinley Street has requested 
permission to place concrete in the public alley right of way at the rear of the referenced 
address, constructing a concrete approach to the alley access garage.  The plan is attached for 
review. 
 
The undersigned has reviewed this request and has no objections to the proposed concrete 
pavement encroachment, 18' wide, 40' long, 8" thick, into the public alley right of way provided 
a Hold Harmless and Grant of License are executed. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City infrastructure. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the request to construct a concrete approach the public 
alley right of way to access a rear entry garage. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If Council approves the encroachment request, direct the City 
Engineer to oversee the submittal of Hold Harmless and Grant of License agreements and issue 
a permit to place the concrete pavement approach, 18' wide, 40' long, 8" thick, in the public 
alley right of way. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Proposed Paving Plan 
2. Grant of License 
3. HH Alley Use 1167 McKinley 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #10 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL that Council has reviewed the request from the property 
owner of 1165-1167 McKinley Street to construct a concrete pavement approach, 18' wide, 40' long and 8" 
thick, to the alley entrance garage in the public alley right of way abutting 1165-1167 McKinley, and has 
determined that the concrete pavement approach will not be a detriment to the health and safety of the public, 
and furthermore, authorizes the City Engineer to approve the permit for the concrete pavement approach which 
encroaches into the public alley right of way subject to submittal of Hold Harmless and Grant of License 
agreements by the property owner. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 







REVOCABLE 
 GRANT OF LICENSE 

 
CITY OF WYANDOTTE, a Michigan Municipal corporation, and it’s successors, hereinafter called the 
GRANTOR, and Daniel Shipman ______________________, owner(s) of 1165-1167 McKinley Street, 
Wyandotte, Michigan, (also described as Lot 44, Baumey Estate Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 39 of 
Plats, Page 10, Wayne County Records) and their successors, hereinafter called the LICENSEE, enter into 
this Agreement on the ______ day of __________________, 2023 subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The LICENSEE is the owner of the real estate described above, located at 1165-1167 McKinley 

Street, which property’s rear property line abuts an eighteen (18) foot wide public alley located east 
of the LICENSEE’s property.      

 
2. The GRANTOR grants to the LICENSEE, and it’s assigns, the right to access and occupy the 

eighteen (18) foot wide public alley directly abutting the property known as 1165-1167 McKinley 
Street for the purposes of constructing an 18’ wide, 40’ long, 8” thick concrete pavement 
approach to access the rear entry garage at this address.  The LICENSEE shall pay all costs 
associated with said construction, maintenance, use, traffic safety measures and removal of 
said concrete pavement approach, including the restoration of any public property if damaged 
during said use.  The LICENSEE shall also be responsible for installation, maintenance and removal 
of all traffic safety measures to ensure the protection of the public.   
 

3. Further, the GRANTOR reserves the right from the date hereof, an easement on, over, under, across, 
and within said property for the purpose of construction, operating, maintaining, and repairing 
existing and future public utilities, sewers, water mains, gas mains and drains.  The GRANTOR also 
reserves the same rights for Wyandotte Municipal Services, Michigan Consolidated Gas Company, 
and Michigan Bell Telephone Company, their successor and assigns. 

 
4. In consideration of the GRANTOR providing this Grant of License, the LICENSEE agrees to execute 

a Hold Harmless agreement indemnifying the GRANTOR from all liability arising out of this Grant 
of License. 
 

5. If the GRANTOR directs LICENSEE to revoke, move or revise any modifications or appurtenances 
added to the public alley, including traffic safety measures, in any way after issuance of this License, 
to ensure the premises will be reasonably safe and convenient for public use and travel, LICENSEE 
agrees to do this at its own cost immediately.  Further, the GRANTOR may revoke this license at any 
time in its sole discretion. 

 
This LICENSE is responsible to pay the recording fee for this Grant of License. 
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Witnesses:     GRANTOR:  City of Wyandotte 
 
_________________________   _________________________________ 
        Robert A. DeSana, Mayor 
 
_________________________   _________________________________ 
        Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _____________________, 2023, by Robert A. DeSana 

and Lawrence S. Stec who are the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Wyandotte who duly executed said 

LICENSE with full authority. 

 
____________________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
My Commission Expires: ________________________ 
 
Witnesses:     LICENSEE: 
 
_________________________   _________________________________ 
        
 
_________________________   _________________________________ 
      
    
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _____________________, 2023, by  

____________________________who duly executed said LICENSE with full authority. 

 
___________________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
My Commission Expires: ________________________ 
 
When recorded, return to:  
City of Wyandotte 
Department of Engineering and Building 
3200 Biddle Avenue, Suite 200 
Wyandotte, Michigan 48192        



HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
 
 
 In consideration of the City of Wyandotte granting permission to access and occupy the 
eighteen (18) foot wide public alley directly abutting the property known as 1165-1167 
McKinley Street for the purposes of constructing an 18’ wide, 40’ long, 8” thick concrete 
pavement approach to access the rear entry garage located at 1165-1167 McKinley Street, and 
providing traffic safety measures, the undersigned hereby assumes all risk and liability relating to 
the construction, maintenance, use, traffic safety measures and removal of said concrete 
approach, and traffic safety measures, and agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the City of 
Wyandotte from all liability or responsibility whatsoever for injury (including death) to persons 
and for any damage to City property or to the property of others arising out of, or resulting either 
directly or indirectly, from the construction, maintenance, use, traffic safety measures and 
removal of said concrete approach, and traffic safety measures. 
  
 The undersigned further does hereby remise, release, and forever discharge the City of 
Wyandotte, its Officers, agents and employees from any and all claims, actions, causes of action, 
damages and liabilities resulting or arising out of, either directly or indirectly, from the 
construction, maintenance, use, traffic safety measures and removal of said concrete approach, 
and traffic safety measures, at said above described location. 
 
 
 
Agreed to this       day of                         , 2023.     
 
 
 
By: ____________________________________  
       Signature of Property Owner 
  
By: _____________________________________  
       Printed Name of Property Owner 
 
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
                      Street                             City                                   State                   Zip 
 
 
Telephone: __________________ 
 
 
Email: ______________________ 
 
 



 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 11  

  

ITEM: Renewal of License Agreement: Blue Water Explorations, Ltd., DBA Diamond 
Jack's River Tours 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer and Sheryl Riley, Recreation 
Superintendent  

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A 

  
BACKGROUND: Since 2000, the City has entered into a one (1) year License Agreement with 
Blue Water Explorations Ltd., DBA Diamond Jack's River Tours, to utilize Bishop Park for 
docking.  Diamond Jack's has indicated that they will not be scheduling any tours, resulting in 
no licensing fees for 2023.  Diamond Jack's will pay $250 for every private charter tour they 
schedule for 2023.  This is a $50.00 increase from the 2022 fee. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte in the commitment to revitalize the downtown by 
adding attractions to entice people to come to Wyandotte and to make our downtown a 
destination spot.  

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute the Renewal 
of License Agreement with Blue Water Explorations Ltd., DBA Diamond Jack's River 
Tours. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Additional miscellaneous income to 
account 101-000-655-040 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Execute Renewal of License Agreement and collect fees.  

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Diamond Jack 2023 Renwal  

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #11 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL that Council has received a communication from the 
City Engineer and Superintendent of Recreation, Leisure & Culture regarding the Renewal of License 
Agreement with Blue Water Explorations, Ltd., DBA Diamond Jack's River Tours and concurs with the 
recommendation to approve the Renewal of License, AND 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to execute the Renewal of License for the 
period of May 21, 2023 to October 3, 2023, to utilize the Bishop Park dock for a fee of $250 for each private 
tour.  
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson  
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson  
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 











 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 12  

  

ITEM: Bid #4726: 2023 Grass Cutting Services Extension 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering and Building has met with U.S. Lawns of 
Livonia regarding extension of their contract for the 2023 Grass Cutting Services.  U.S. Lawns 
of Livonia has agreed to perform this year's services at the unit rates set forth in the contract 
with the City for File #4726 Lawn Cutting Services. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City owned lots and parks. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Accept the recommendation of the City Engineer to extend the 
current grass cutting contract with U.S. Lawns for the 2023 season. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The 2023 Grass Cutting Services 
would be funded through the following accounts totaling $70,944. 
     TIFA Property Maintenance          492-200-850-520   $60,192 
     Memorial Park Grass Cutting       101-448-825-480    $10,752 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize the Mayor and Clerk to 
execute the contract extension. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. US Lawns Contract Extension SIGNED 02-21-23 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #12 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
Resolved by City Council that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and APPROVES 
the contract extension of Bid File #4726 Grass Cutting Services with U.S. Lawns of Livonia for the 2023 Grass 
Cutting of City property in the amount of $70,944 paid from accounts: 
     $60,192 from Account 492-200-850-520 and 
     $10,752 from Account 101-448-825-480. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 





 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 13  

  

ITEM: Bid Award #4839: Demolition of McKinley School - International Construction, 
Inc. 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: On August 29, 2022, Council declared the structure at 640 Plum Street, 
known as McKinley School, to be unsafe and dangerous and ordered the demolition of the 
structure, and further, directed the City Engineer to prepare specifications and solicit quotes to 
demolish said structure.  Specifications, File #4839 Demolition of McKinley School, were 
prepared and the project was advertised on BidNet.  An On-Site Pre-Bid meeting was held 
January 11, 2023.  Bids were opened January 23, 2023. 
 
Nine (9) bids were received, with the two lowest bidders being Oak-Wood Building Company, 
Inc., $239,800, and International Construction, Inc., $469,900.  The Engineering and Building 
Department requested additional information from the two low bidders in accordance with 
Section 1.03.02 Competency of the Bidder of the Specifications.  References were contacted 
and in-person interviews were held with each bidder. 
 
With consideration of Specifications Section 1.03.01 Consideration of Proposals, and Section 
1.03.02 Competency of the Bidder , I recommend acceptance of the bid from International 
Construction, Inc., of Shelby Township, Michigan, in the amount of $469,900 as being the bid 
received that is in the best interests of the City of Wyandotte.  

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in continuing to provide citizens with a 
community free of hazardous and unsightly structures. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Accept the bid from International Construction, Inc., of Shelby 
Township, Michigan, in the amount of $469,900.00, to demolish the structure at 640 Plum 
Street. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The demolition of 640 Plum Street 
will be funded by Account 492-200-850-519 Land Purchases, which has a current balance of 
$173,569. in the amount of $469,900.00.  A budget amendment/transfer will be required. 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by City Council, authorize the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the contract. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. BID FILE #4839 BID LOG 
2. International Bid 
3. International Qualifications 
4. Oakwood Bid 
5. Oakwood Qualifications 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #13 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the award to 
International Construction, Inc., of Shelby Township, Michigan, for File #4839 Demolition of McKinley 
School in the amount of $469,900.00, in accordance with the Contract Specifications Section 1.03.01 
Consideration of Proposals, and Section 1.03.02 Competency of the Bidder, as being in the best interest of the 
City, and authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to proceed with the execution of this contract, and, 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that a budget amendment be performed, transferring $469,900.00 from TIFA Fund 
Balance into Account 492-200-850-519 Land Purchases, to pay for this work. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 























































































 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 14  

  

ITEM: Bid Award #4842: 2023 Sewer CCTV Project - Rogue Industrial Services 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: In support of the proposed Downtown Capital Improvements and 
Infrastructure Project, the storm and sanitary sewer mains, catch basins and manholes in the 
alleys west of Biddle Avenue from Eureka to Oak require cleaning and inspection to determine 
their condition. 
 
The Engineering and Building Department prepared specifications, File #4842 - 2023 
Downtown CCTV Inspections, advertised on BidNet on February 2, 2023, and received 
competitive sealed bids. Bids were due and opened on February 27, 2023. Eight (8) quotes were 
received as shown on the attached Bid Deposit Log Sheet for this project. 
 
I recommend the acceptance of the bid for cleaning and inspection of storm and sanitary sewer 
mains from Rogue Industrial Services, LLC, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan, in the amount of 
$39,477.50 as being the best bid received meeting specifications. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to provide the finest services and 
quality of life. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Accept the bid from Rogue Industrial Services, LLC, Bloomfield 
Hills, Michigan, to perform the work specfied in File #4837 - 2022 Downtown CCTV 
Inspections. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The storm and sanitary sewer main 
cleaning and inspection work will be funded from Account # 590-200-926-310 in the amount of 
$39,477.50. 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Execute contract with Rogue Industrial Services, LLC, 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. #4842 BID LOG 
2. #4842 ROGUE INDUSTRIAL 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #14 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and accepts the bid from 
Rogue Industrial Services, LLC, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan, to perform the storm and sanitary sewer main 
cleaning and inspection work in accordance with File #4842 - 2023 Downtown CCTV Inspections, in the 
amount of $39,477.50, which shall be funded from Account 590-200-926-310; AND 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to sign the contract with Rogue Industrial 
Services, LLC. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 





























 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 15  

  

ITEM: Vacate and Abolish Alley South of Grove Street - 5th to Albion 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: The Engineering Department has received a request from Iverson 
Investments, LLC, to vacate and abolish the sixteen (16) foot wide public alley located south of 
Grove Street between 5th St. and Albion St. 
 
A review of the alley indicates that there is a ten (10) inch sewer and three (3) manholes located 
in the alley. These sewers connect to a 12" sewer flowing south in a vacated and abolished 
alley, all of which service only Iverson Investment property. There are existing electrical lines 
and poles in the alley, which, according to Wyandotte Municipal Services Electrical 
Department, can be terminated and removed. 
 
At the February 13, 2023, City Council meeting, Council determined that it is a necessary 
public improvement to vacate and abolish the above described public alley and scheduled a 
public hearing to hear objections to said public alley vacation and abolishment. 
 
The public hearing was held today. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in matching tools and efforts to the 
conditions in city neighborhoods; and tracking infrastructure conditions in all neighborhoods. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Upon conclusion of the public hearing, determine if the 
described public alley should be vacated and abolished. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, declare the described alley vacated and 
abolished. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Alley Site Location 
2. Petition to Vacate 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #15 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 
    WHEREAS, this Council by resolution has deemed it advisable and necessary for the health, welfare, 
comfort and safety of the people of the City of Wyandotte, to vacate and abolish the hereinafter described land 
in the City of Wyandotte, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, as a public alley, more particularly described 
as: 
 
The sixteen (16) foot wide east-west public alley south of Grove Street, between 5th St. and Albion St., 
abutting Lots 28 thru 37, both inclusive, South Detroit Sub. of part of Sec. 32, T. 3 S., R. 11 E., Ecorse (now 
City of Wyandotte), Wayne Co., Michigan, as recorded in Liber 14, Page 95, Wayne County Records. 
 
    WHEREAS, due notice has been given of the hearing of objections to said vacation and abolishment; and 
 
    WHEREAS, said hearing having taken place in accordance with such notice, and _____ objections have 
been offered, and this Council is still of the opinion that said vacation and abolishment is advisable; now, 
therefore, 
 
    BE IT RESOLVED that the above-described alley shall be and the same is hereby declared VACATED 
AND ABOLISHED as a public alley,     
 
    BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the operation and maintenance of sanitary sewer mains and structures 
located in the vacated and abolished alley, and any other existing improvements, shall become the 
responsibility of the abutting property owners, and the City of Wyandotte shall not be liable for any injury or 
damage to, or disturbance of, nor shall it have any duty to pay for or replace, any animate or inanimate 
improvement on, over, under, across, or within said sixteen (16) foot right-of-way. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     

    Stec     









 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

   
MEETING DATE: 3/13/2023 AGENDA ITEM # 16  

  

ITEM: Vacate Alley South of Grove Street - Albion to 6th 

  
PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer 

  
INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  

  
BACKGROUND: The Engineering Department has received a request from Iverson 
Investments, LLC, to vacate the sixteen (16) foot wide public alley located south of Grove 
Street between Albion St. and 6th St. 
 
A review of the alley indicates that there is a ten (10) inch sewer and three (3) manholes located 
in the alley. These sewers connect to a 12" sewer flowing south in a vacated and abolished 
alley. There are existing electrical lines and poles in the alley, which Wyandotte Municipal 
Services Electrical Department continues to need access to, but can be terminated and removed 
in the future. 
 
At the February 13, 2023, City Council meeting, Council determined that it is a necessary 
public improvement to vacate the above described public alley and scheduled a public hearing 
to hear objections to said public alley vacation.  
 
The public hearing was held today. 

  
STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in matching tools and efforts to the 
conditions in city neighborhoods; and tracking infrastructure conditions in all neighborhoods. 

  
ACTION REQUESTED: Upon conclusion of the public hearing, determine if the 
described public alley should be vacated and abolished. 

  
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A 

  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, declare the described alley vacated. 

  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Alley Site Location 
2. Petition to Close 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: #16 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
    RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE 
 
    WHEREAS, this Council by resolution has deemed it advisable and necessary for the health, welfare, 
comfort and safety of the people of the City of Wyandotte, to vacate the hereinafter described land in the City 
of Wyandotte, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, as a public alley, more particularly described as: 
 
The sixteen (16) foot wide east-west public alley south of Grove Street, between Albion St. and 6th St., 
abutting Lots 12 thru 22, both inclusive, and Lots 24 and 25, South Detroit Sub. of part of Sec. 32, T. 3 S., R. 
11 E., Ecorse (now City of Wyandotte), Wayne Co., Michigan, as recorded in Liber 14, Page 95, Wayne 
County Records. 
 
    WHEREAS, due notice has been given of the hearing of objections to said vacation; and 
 
    WHEREAS, said hearing having taken place in accordance with such notice, and _____ objections have 
been offered, and this Council is still being of the opinion that said vacation is advisable; now, therefore, 
 
    BE IT RESOLVED that the above described alley shall be and the same is hereby declared VACATED as a 
public alley, reserving to the City of Wyandotte, a Municipal Corporation of the State of Michigan, its 
successors and assigns forever and in perpetuity from the date hereof, an easement on, over, under, across, and 
within the sixteen (16) foot right-of-way of the above described alley for the purpose of constructing, operating, 
maintaining and repairing existing and future public utilities, sewers and drains, and that said City of 
Wyandotte, its contractors, employees, agents successors, assigns and lessees shall at all times have free ingress 
to and egress from said alley right-of-way, to construct, operate, maintain and repair said existing and future 
utility lines of every nature, and sewers and drains. 
 
    BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby reserved to the Michigan Bell Telephone Company, its 
successors and assigns, an easement on, over, under, across and within said sixteen (16) foot wide right-of-way 
for the purpose of constructing, erecting, operating, maintaining, and repairing its existing and future telephone 
communication system consisting of poles, lines, wires, cables and apparatus; and that said Michigan Bell 
Telephone Company, its contractors, employees, agents, successors and assigns shall at all times have full 
ingress to and egress from said sixteen (16) foot wide right-of-way for said purpose. 
 
    BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that no structures, or any article or thing whatsoever shall be constructed or 
maintained on, over, under, across, or within the sixteen (16) foot right-of-way of the above described alley 
except the erection of fences by the abutting property owners and that in the exercise of the easement and 
ingress and egress rights heretofore reserved herein said City of Wyandotte shall not be liable for any injury or 
damage to, or disturbance of, nor shall it have any duty to pay for or replace, any animate or inanimate 
improvement on, over, under, across, or within said sixteen (16) foot right-of-way. 
  



 

 

I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
 









GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Invoice  Chk Date Amount Check #

Check 13168
101‐000‐215‐591 DUE TO Electric Utility Fund JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 4.00 13168
101‐000‐215‐592 DUE TO Water Utility Fund JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 1.00 13168
101‐000‐215‐594 DUE TO Cable Utility Fund JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 4.99 13168
101‐200‐825‐370 Computer Services JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 191.99 13168
101‐200‐825‐370 Computer Services JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 600.99 13168
101‐200‐825‐370 Computer Services JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 725.00 13168
101‐200‐925‐790 Miscellaneous JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 15.89 13168
101‐336‐825‐430 Auto Maintenance JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 201.98 13168
101‐440‐750‐210 Office Supplies JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 17.94 13168
101‐448‐750‐220 Sanitation‐Operating Expenses JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 75.00 13168
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 55.98 13168
101‐750‐850‐550 SMART‐Equipment/Maintenance JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 50.00 13168
285‐225‐925‐849 Special Events‐Misc JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 635.87 13168
285‐225‐925‐860 Art Fair JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 85.98 13168
499‐200‐926‐790 Miscellaneous JP MORGAN CHASE CREDIT CARD CREDIT CARD ‐ 12/15/22 ‐ 01/15/23 5563750108849348 02/10/23 25.00 13168

Total For Check 13168 2,691.61

Check 13256
731‐000‐228‐021 Due to State‐W/H STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY DEPT STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY PENSION 2/15/23 02/15/23 14,572.29 13256

Total For Check 13256 14,572.29

Check 13257
101‐000‐654‐000 Receipts‐Yack Concessions STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY DEPT SALES TAX STATE OF MICHIGAN JANUARY 2023 02/15/23 369.64 13257

Total For Check 13257 369.64

Check 13258
731‐000‐228‐024 Due to Federal‐Income Taxes U.S. TAX ACCOUNT US TAX ACCOUNT PENSION 2/15/23 02/15/23 60,122.92 13258

Total For Check 13258 60,122.92

Check 13259
101‐000‐231‐070 P/R Deductions‐Deferred Comp EMPOWER RETIREMENT LLC EMPOWER RETIREMENT LLC PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,088.50 13259
101‐000‐231‐070 P/R Deductions‐Deferred Comp EMPOWER RETIREMENT LLC EMPOWER RETIREMENT LLC PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 445.00 13259

Total For Check 13259 2,533.50

Check 13260
101‐000‐228‐010 Due to FICA/Medicare INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 9,326.98 13260
101‐000‐228‐010 Due to FICA/Medicare INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 18,584.76 13260
499‐000‐228‐010 Due to FICA/Medicare INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 194.22 13260
499‐000‐228‐010 Due to FICA/Medicare INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 45.42 13260

Total For Check 13260 28,151.38

Check 13261
101‐000‐228‐021 Due to State‐W/H Tax (GC) STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY DEPT STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 12,070.97 13261
499‐000‐228‐021 Due to State‐W/H Tax (GC) STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY DEPT STATE OF MICHIGAN TREASURY PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 35.90 13261

Total For Check 13261 12,106.87

Check 13262
101‐000‐228‐024 Due to Federal‐W/H Tax U.S. TAX ACCOUNT US TAX ACCOUNT PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 28,902.74 13262
499‐000‐228‐024 Due to Federal‐W/H Tax U.S. TAX ACCOUNT US TAX ACCOUNT PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 40.24 13262

Total For Check 13262 28,942.98

Check 13263
101‐000‐227‐000 Due to Public Library BACON MEMORIAL LIBRARY TAX DIST LIBRARY SUMMER SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 2,506.77 13263

Total For Check 13263 2,506.77

Check 13264
101‐000‐223‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 9,319.68 13264

02/22/2023                             INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF WYANDOTTE                                        
                                            EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/09/2023 ‐ 02/22/2023                                            

                                                         JOURNALIZED PAID                                                          
                                                          BANK CODE: CLAIM                                                         

Bills & Accounts



GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Invoice  Chk Date Amount Check #

02/22/2023                             INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF WYANDOTTE                                        
                                            EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/09/2023 ‐ 02/22/2023                                            

                                                         JOURNALIZED PAID                                                          
                                                          BANK CODE: CLAIM                                                         

101‐000‐224‐000 Due to RESA OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 158.66 13264
101‐000‐224‐024 Due to RESA ‐ Enhancement Millage OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 3,301.86 13264
101‐000‐226‐000 Due to Special Education OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 5,555.81 13264
101‐000‐228‐000 Due to State (SET) OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 10,214.57 13264

Total For Check 13264 28,550.58

Check 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 62,418.64 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 59,446.32 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 204,521.57 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 15,517.24 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 13,156.87 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 63,161.72 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 6,294.32 13265
701‐000‐274‐000 Due to County OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY TAX DIST WAYNE COUNTY WINTER 2022 02/15/23 12,588.63 13265

Total For Check 13265 437,105.31

Check 13266
101‐000‐225‐000 DUE TO WYAN SCHOOL BOARD‐OPER SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 8,071.96 13266
101‐000‐225‐025 Due to Wyan School Board‐Debt SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 2,907.15 13266
101‐000‐225‐030 Due to Wyan School Board‐Sinking Fund SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT SUMMER 2022 02/15/23 1,427.74 13266

Total For Check 13266 12,406.85

Check 13267
701‐000‐225‐000 Due to Wyandotte School Board SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT WINTER 2022 02/15/23 297,982.06 13267
701‐000‐225‐025 Due to Wyan School Board‐Debt SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT WINTER 2022 02/15/23 111,142.21 13267
701‐000‐225‐030 Due to Wyan School Board‐Sinking Fund SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE TAX DIST SCHOOL DISTRICT WINTER 2022 02/15/23 54,584.15 13267

Total For Check 13267 463,708.42

Check 13268
101‐301‐750‐220 Operating Expenses ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY ACCT. NO 917639, STATEMENT NO. 78800685, BOTTLED WATER FOR EXERCISE ROOM 1/10/23 88683295 02/22/23 38.25 13268

Total For Check 13268 38.25

Check 13269
101‐750‐925‐780 Rentals (Seniors/PortaJohns) ACEE DEUCEE PORTA CAN FOP PORTA CAN 144252 02/22/23 90.00 13269

Total For Check 13269 90.00

Check 13270
590‐200‐926‐310 Operation,Maintenance & Replacement ADVANTAGE PEST CONTROL TOTAL CITY RAT SERVICE JANUARY 2023 JANUARY 2023 CITY  02/22/23 3,350.00 13270

Total For Check 13270 3,350.00

Check 13271
499‐200‐925‐804 Marketing ALLEGRA MARKETING LOVIN THE DOTTE POSTCARDS 54303 02/22/23 150.00 13271
499‐200‐925‐807 EXISTING BUSINESS STIMULUS ALLEGRA MARKETING DOWNTOWN DOLLARS 54302 02/22/23 140.00 13271

Total For Check 13271 290.00

Check 13272
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance ALLIED BLDG. SERVICE CO OF DETROIT EE#1 & FINAL  HVAC ROOF TOP UNIT AT COPELAND CENTER FILE #4832 COPELAND CENTER 02/22/23 20,050.00 13272
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance ALLIED BLDG. SERVICE CO OF DETROIT DIAGNOSED AT COPELAND CENTER 2306 4TH 00305270 02/22/23 368.00 13272

Total For Check 13272 20,418.00

Check 13273
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses BAKERS GAS & WELDING SUPPLIES CYLINDER RENTAL  0009282220 02/22/23 180.78 13273

Total For Check 13273 180.78

Check 13274
101‐336‐750‐222 Medical/Rescue Supplies BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC FIRST AID SUPPLIES 84845810 02/22/23 390.92 13274
101‐336‐750‐222 Medical/Rescue Supplies BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC FIRST AID SUPPLIES 84847424 02/22/23 33.70 13274
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Total For Check 13274 424.62

Check 13275
290‐448‐850‐540 Other Equipment CASECADE ENGINEERING STOCK TOTERS DPS  30582529 02/22/23 7,704.00 13275

Total For Check 13275 7,704.00

Check 13276
101‐301‐825‐395 IT‐Operation & Maintenance CDW GOVERNMENT INC EXTENDED WARRANTY ‐ JAIL VIDEO EQUIP. GM19140 02/22/23 202.06 13276

Total For Check 13276 202.06

Check 13277
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses CHAPP & BUSHEY OIL CO. FUEL PUMP PARTS DPS 2302084 02/22/23 769.00 13277

Total For Check 13277 769.00

Check 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02152023 02/22/23 100.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02132023 02/22/23 350.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02142023 02/22/23 650.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02102023 02/22/23 250.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02022023 02/22/23 225.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02062023 02/22/23 300.00 13278
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CHRISTOPHER R SHEMKE COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02032023 02/22/23 400.00 13278

Total For Check 13278 2,275.00

Check 13279
101‐000‐257‐056 Reserve‐Boat Ramp Operations CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 43.68 13279
101‐200‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 82.39 13279
101‐301‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 1,172.44 13279
101‐303‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 316.01 13279
101‐303‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 82.39 13279
101‐336‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 504.59 13279
101‐448‐825‐930 Heat(Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 3,292.96 13279
101‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 0.61 13279
101‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 716.96 13279
101‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 (28.32) 13279
101‐756‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 2,780.49 13279
101‐756‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 232.26 13279
101‐800‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 215.39 13279
101‐800‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 150.02 13279
101‐800‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 440.12 13279
525‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 222.32 13279
525‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 559.41 13279
525‐750‐825‐930 Heat (Gas) CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 22.29 13279
530‐444‐825‐930 Heat(Gas)‐Bank Bldg CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY‐GAS DIV LLC GAS ‐ JAN 2023 3674655 02/22/23 1,459.83 13279

Total For Check 13279 12,265.84

Check 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02092023 02/22/23 400.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02082023 02/22/23 675.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02062023 02/22/23 350.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02072023 02/22/23 150.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02022023 02/22/23 400.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02032023 02/22/23 300.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 01222023 02/22/23 250.00 13280
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys CORY P WESTMORELAND COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02142023 02/22/23 500.00 13280

Total For Check 13280 3,025.00

Check 13281
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101‐200‐825‐450 Insurance & Casualty DALY MERRITT INSURANCE POLICY ‐ BINDERSTP416863 36690 02/22/23 1,761.00 13281
Total For Check 13281 1,761.00

Check 13282
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses DEALER AUTO PARTS SALES INC STOCK WIRE CLIPS  877047 02/22/23 60.50 13282
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance DEALER AUTO PARTS SALES INC BRAKES FOR VP 7‐15 VIN 1FM5KD81JGA31051 874221  02/22/23 489.71 13282

Total For Check 13282 550.21

Check 13283
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) DELTA DENTAL 0007240006 MARCH 2023 RIS0004728498 03/23 02/22/23 7,335.81 13283
499‐200‐725‐160 Medical Insurance DELTA DENTAL 0007240006 MARCH 2023 RIS0004728498 03/23 02/22/23 127.04 13283

Total For Check 13283 7,462.85

Check 13284
101‐440‐750‐210 Office Supplies DES MOINES STAMP MFG CO POCKET NOTARY EMBOSSER 1213678 02/22/23 41.00 13284

Total For Check 13284 41.00

Check 13285
101‐136‐750‐228 Regional Wellness & Recovery Court DNA DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING CENTERS DNA INVOICE FOR JANUARY Q2 2118 02/22/23 732.00 13285
101‐136‐750‐228 Regional Wellness & Recovery Court DNA DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING CENTERS DNA INVOICE FOR DECEMBER 2022 Q2 2101 02/22/23 840.00 13285

Total For Check 13285 1,572.00

Check 13286
101‐100‐750‐222 Memberships & Dues DOWNRIVER COMMUNITY CONFERENCE MEMBERSHIP 2022‐2023 7041 02/22/23 9,215.54 13286
101‐301‐825‐490 Mutual Aid Dues DOWNRIVER COMMUNITY CONFERENCE DMA DUES 2022/2023 7060 02/22/23 4,091.78 13286
101‐301‐825‐490 Mutual Aid Dues DOWNRIVER COMMUNITY CONFERENCE DMA DUES 2022/2023 7060 02/22/23 8,394.14 13286
101‐336‐825‐480 Mutual Aid Dues DOWNRIVER COMMUNITY CONFERENCE DMA DUES 2022/2023 7060 02/22/23 11,770.86 13286

Total For Check 13286 33,472.32

Check 13287
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors EDWARD & BONNIE RINGLER INSPECTIONS 01302023‐0212023 02/22/23 536.50 13287
101‐440‐825‐491 Electrical Inspectors EDWARD & BONNIE RINGLER INSPECTIONS 01302023‐0212023 02/22/23 180.00 13287

Total For Check 13287 716.50

Check 13288
101‐303‐825‐220 Operating Expenses FEED RITE PET SHOP & SUPPLY WAC ‐ TIDY CATS 343032 02/22/23 89.94 13288
101‐303‐825‐220 Operating Expenses FEED RITE PET SHOP & SUPPLY DCAC ‐ DIAMOND MAINT., TIDY CAT, HILLS PUPPY 343033 02/22/23 189.93 13288
265‐301‐925‐730 Other Expenses ‐ State FEED RITE PET SHOP & SUPPLY K9 JAX ‐ WELLNESS CORE, YAK CHEWS 444607 02/22/23 100.97 13288

Total For Check 13288 380.84

Check 13289
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses FLASH RESALE/WHOLESALE LLC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 69685 02/22/23 818.21 13289

Total For Check 13289 818.21

Check 13290
101‐750‐750‐220 Operating Expenses FORTE PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC MONTHLY FEES 0010320445 02/22/23 5.00 13290

Total For Check 13290 5.00

Check 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02092023 02/22/23 250.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02102023 02/22/23 475.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02142023 02/22/23 425.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02152023 02/22/23 325.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 01312023 02/22/23 625.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02012023 02/22/23 250.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02022023 02/22/23 375.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02072023 02/22/23 200.00 13291
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys GOLDPAUGH & ASSOCIATES PC COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02032023 02/22/23 375.00 13291
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Total For Check 13291 3,300.00

Check 13292
590‐200‐926‐210 Supplies GRAINGER REPLACEMENT SEWER SNAKE CABLE FOR DPS 9565153831 02/22/23 245.08 13292

Total For Check 13292 245.08

Check 13293
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors GREGORY M. GARRISON INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 505.50 13293

Total For Check 13293 505.50

Check 13294
101‐336‐825‐430 Auto Maintenance GROAT BROTHERS AUTO SUPPLY TIRE REPAIR A71 H8186 02/22/23 15.00 13294

Total For Check 13294 15.00

Check 13295
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors JEFF EVANS INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 440.50 13295

Total For Check 13295 440.50

Check 13296
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors JEFFERY CARLEY INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 867.00 13296

Total For Check 13296 867.00

Check 13297
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE GORILLA TAPE 76935 02/22/23 14.24 13297
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE WATERWELD EPOXY 76971 02/22/23 9.11 13297
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE 12 FILTER AIR PLEAT 76977 02/22/23 63.73 13297
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE RING WELDED  77023 02/22/23 10.57 13297
101‐336‐750‐220 Operating Expenses JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE BATTERY LITHIUM 3V 77311 02/22/23 48.96 13297
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE SHOP SUPPLIES DPS 77433 02/22/23 7.45 13297
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE SHOP SUPPLIES DPS 77372 02/22/23 5.66 13297
101‐750‐825‐490 Field Maintenance & Supplies JERRY'S ACE HARDWARE PAINT & GLOVES 77373 02/22/23 30.38 13297

Total For Check 13297 190.10

Check 13298
499‐200‐925‐802 Farmers Market JULIE A BUTTERFIELD JANUARY 2023 PAYMENT  292023 02/22/23 300.00 13298

Total For Check 13298 300.00

Check 13299
202‐440‐825‐460 Resurfacing JV CONTRACTING INC. EE#3 & FINAL  2022 PAVEMENT MARKING PROGRAM FILE #4825 PAVEMENT MARKING 02/22/23 4,664.27 13299
203‐440‐825‐460 Resurfacing JV CONTRACTING INC. EE#3 & FINAL  2022 PAVEMENT MARKING PROGRAM FILE #4825 PAVEMENT MARKING 02/22/23 1,166.07 13299

Total For Check 13299 5,830.34

Check 13300
101‐756‐750‐225 Concession Supplies LEONARD'S SYRUPS SUPPLIES FOR YACK CONCESSION 5101573227 02/22/23 194.00 13300

Total For Check 13300 194.00

Check 13301
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors MARK KUSIAK INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 523.00 13301

Total For Check 13301 523.00

Check 13302
101‐136‐750‐228 Regional Wellness & Recovery Court MICHIGAN ASSOC. OF DRUG COURT PROF. 2023 MATCP CONFERENCE 2023 02/22/23 1,540.00 13302

Total For Check 13302 1,540.00

Check 13303
101‐756‐825‐420 Bldg & Equip Maintenance MID AMERICA RINK SERVICES PARTS TO FIX YACK ZAMBONI 11027 02/22/23 285.16 13303

Total For Check 13303 285.16
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Check 13304
281‐000‐257‐050 Program Income‐Reserve MINNESOTA TITLE AGENCY RECORD LIEN 2961 9TH 2961 9TH 02/22/23 25.00 13304
281‐000‐257‐050 Program Income‐Reserve MINNESOTA TITLE AGENCY RECORD LIEN 951 HUDSON 951 HUDSON 02/22/23 25.00 13304
492‐000‐041‐040 A/R‐Lien Paybacks MINNESOTA TITLE AGENCY TITLE EXAM FEE 215‐217 SUPERIOR 1058 02/22/23 325.00 13304
492‐200‐850‐519 Land Purchases MINNESOTA TITLE AGENCY RECORD LIEN 254 OAK 254 OAK 02/22/23 25.00 13304

Total For Check 13304 400.00

Check 13305
530‐444‐825‐220 Operating Expenses‐Bank Bldg MISTER UNIFORM & MAT RENTAL MAT RENTAL 2340522 02/22/23 97.84 13305

Total For Check 13305 97.84

Check 13306
101‐750‐825‐430 Contractual Services MONKS & TARNOWSKI PLUMBING WORK AT COPELAND FOR TOILET IN WOMEN'S ROOM 02072023 02/22/23 355.00 13306

Total For Check 13306 355.00

Check 13307
677‐448‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 01/24/23 ‐ 01/25/23 (J. VERNIER & J. ALLEN DOT PHYSICALS) 714686568 02/22/23 238.00 13307

Total For Check 13307 238.00

Check 13308
677‐440‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 01/09/23 ‐ 01/15/23 (F. FOSTER) 714667234 02/22/23 97.00 13308

Total For Check 13308 97.00

Check 13309
677‐136‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 01/18/23 ‐ 01/20/23 (SUMMERFIELD, PEAVLER, HUDSON) 714677100 02/22/23 97.00 13309
677‐225‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 01/18/23 ‐ 01/20/23 (SUMMERFIELD, PEAVLER, HUDSON) 714677100 02/22/23 97.00 13309
677‐302‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 01/18/23 ‐ 01/20/23 (SUMMERFIELD, PEAVLER, HUDSON) 714677100 02/22/23 97.00 13309

Total For Check 13309 291.00

Check 13310
101‐136‐750‐230 Postage PITNEY BOWES POSTAGE‐RESERVE ACCOUNT DEPOSIT  22023 02/22/23 4,000.00 13310

Total For Check 13310 4,000.00

Check 13311
492‐200‐850‐519 Land Purchases PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC 1247 ELM DEMOLITION AND ABATEMENT PROPOSAL 1247 ELM 02/22/23 17,388.00 13311
530‐444‐825‐220 Operating Expenses‐Bank Bldg PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC EE#2 SNOW REMOVE & SALT APPLICATION FILE #4744 SNOW REMOVAL 02/22/23 3,230.00 13311

Total For Check 13311 20,618.00

Check 13312
101‐253‐825‐350 Printing PROFROMA TEAM MARKETIN SOLUTIONS LASER GREEN CHECKS ‐ 1,000 BQ34003358A 02/22/23 342.11 13312

Total For Check 13312 342.11

Check 13313
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance PURE MITTEN AIR DUCT CLEANING, LLC DUCT CLEANING 266 MAPLE 732 02/22/23 3,811.50 13313

Total For Check 13313 3,811.50

Check 13314
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance PUROCLEAN FIRST RESPONDERS CLEANIND OF VP 7‐4  5681 02/22/23 175.00 13314

Total For Check 13314 175.00

Check 13315
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance QUALITY FIRST AID & SAFETY INC 1ST AID SUPPLIES FOR DPS KB‐009976 02/22/23 92.51 13315
590‐200‐926‐210 Supplies QUALITY FIRST AID & SAFETY INC GLOVES FOR SEWER WORK KB‐009979 02/22/23 284.79 13315

Total For Check 13315 377.30

Check 13316
101‐756‐825‐420 Bldg & Equip Maintenance QUINT PLUMBING & HEATING INC FIXED ZAMBONI WATER LINE  77368 02/22/23 499.71 13316

Total For Check 13316 499.71
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Check 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02012023 02/22/23 250.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 2012023 02/22/23 75.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02022023 02/22/23 400.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02072023 02/22/23 200.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02082023 02/22/23 425.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02152023 02/22/23 400.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02142023 02/22/23 275.00 13317
260‐136‐825‐229 MIDC Attorneys RICHARD SORANNO COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY 02102023 02/22/23 250.00 13317

Total For Check 13317 2,275.00

Check 13318
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors RONALD E KEEHN INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 154.50 13318

Total For Check 13318 154.50

Check 13319
101‐301‐825‐330 Prisoner Care SHOPPER'S VALLEY MARKET PRISONER MEALS ‐ JANUARY 2023 166531 02/22/23 297.55 13319

Total For Check 13319 297.55

Check 13320
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses SHRADER TIRE & OIL TIRE REPAIR  23‐0738139‐00 02/22/23 89.67 13320
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses SHRADER TIRE & OIL STOCK TIRE LPUGS 23‐0735181‐00 02/22/23 16.86 13320
101‐448‐825‐431 Garage‐Other Vehicle Maintenance SHRADER TIRE & OIL TIRE REPAIR  23‐0735722‐00 02/22/23 45.67 13320

Total For Check 13320 152.20

Check 13321
492‐200‐850‐519 Land Purchases SKARZYNSKI'S LANDSCAPING LLC SNOW REMOVAL CITY SIDEWALKS SOUTH END 50 VACANT LOTS 1‐31‐23 3001 02/22/23 500.00 13321
492‐200‐850‐519 Land Purchases SKARZYNSKI'S LANDSCAPING LLC SNOW REMOVAL CITY SIDEWALKS NORTH END 54 LOTS 2‐1‐23 3002 02/22/23 540.00 13321

Total For Check 13321 1,040.00

Check 13322
101‐750‐850‐550 SMART‐Equipment/Maintenance SMART NOV 22 WORK ORDER 2022‐342 18107 02/22/23 428.36 13322

Total For Check 13322 428.36

Check 13323
677‐336‐825‐340 Employee Physical Exams SOLID GROUND COUNSELING GERALD CROSS BALANCE DUE (12/15/22 & 01/13/23) GOUAN000 020223 02/22/23 20.00 13323

Total For Check 13323 20.00

Check 13324
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC STOCK KEY WAYS  11869285 02/22/23 104.95 13324

Total For Check 13324 104.95

Check 13325
101‐756‐750‐225 Concession Supplies SYSCO FOOD SERVICE CONCESSION SUPPLIES FOR YACK 558133474 02/22/23 1,272.61 13325
101‐756‐750‐225 Concession Supplies SYSCO FOOD SERVICE FOOD FOR YACK CONCESSION 558119671 02/22/23 1,683.36 13325

Total For Check 13325 2,955.97

Check 13326
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance TEMPERATURE CONTROL PARTS AND LABOR TO REPAIR GARAGE HEATER AT DPS  2904 02/22/23 3,769.21 13326

Total For Check 13326 3,769.21

Check 13327
101‐136‐750‐228 Regional Wellness & Recovery Court THE GUIDANCE CENTER THE GUIDANCE CENTER JANUARY 23 INVOICE Q2 MHCJAN23 02/22/23 2,752.32 13327

Total For Check 13327 2,752.32

Check 13328
101‐000‐257‐078 Reserve‐Animal Care THE PAWS CLINIC STERILIZE ‐ BEETHOVEN ‐ STAR 2049378 02/22/23 200.00 13328
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Total For Check 13328 200.00

Check 13329
101‐440‐725‐115 Salaries‐Seasonal (PT) TIMOTHY THOMPSON INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 100.00 13329
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors TIMOTHY THOMPSON INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 330.00 13329
101‐440‐825‐492 Plumbing Inspectors TIMOTHY THOMPSON INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 395.00 13329
101‐440‐825‐493 Mechanical Inspectors TIMOTHY THOMPSON INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 405.00 13329

Total For Check 13329 1,230.00

Check 13330
101‐136‐825‐300 Contractual Service‐Court Reporter TONJIA WILLIAMS COURT RECORDING  021523 02/22/23 2,285.00 13330

Total For Check 13330 2,285.00

Check 13331
101‐136‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐136‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 279.32 13331
101‐172‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐172‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 278.76 13331
101‐215‐825‐370 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐215‐825‐370 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 278.76 13331
101‐301‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐301‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐301‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331
101‐301‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331
101‐301‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 9.09 13331
101‐302‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐302‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331
101‐336‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 2 MONTHS COPIER FEE  493766208 02/22/23 243.00 13331
101‐336‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐336‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331
101‐440‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.41 13331
101‐440‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 152.67 13331
101‐448‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐448‐825‐390 Copier TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331
101‐750‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES PAPERCUT FOR COPY MACHINES ‐ FEB 2023 493771067 02/22/23 30.38 13331
101‐750‐825‐390 Copier Agreement TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPY MACHINE CONTRACT ‐ FEB 2023 493769640 02/22/23 183.99 13331

Total For Check 13331 2,649.37

Check 13332
101‐301‐825‐395 IT‐Operation & Maintenance TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. SRO EQUIP. ‐ BROTHER, ACC‐PRINTERS 130‐134249 02/22/23 448.00 13332

Total For Check 13332 448.00

Check 13333
101‐215‐850‐510 Office Equipment ULINE SHELVING 159494133 02/22/23 1,624.41 13333

Total For Check 13333 1,624.41

Check 13334
101‐301‐825‐420 Cleaning‐Building VETERAN'S CLEANING JANITORIAL SERVICES JANUARY 2023 23‐901 02/22/23 4,715.00 13334

Total For Check 13334 4,715.00

Check 13335
101‐440‐825‐490 C of C Inspectors WALTER CZARNIK INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 811.00 13335
101‐440‐825‐491 Electrical Inspectors WALTER CZARNIK INSPECTIONS 01302023‐02122023 02/22/23 1,175.00 13335

Total For Check 13335 1,986.00

Check 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 Rubbish Collection WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 88,007.04 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 COMMERICAL CAEDBOARD WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 965.72 13336
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290‐448‐825‐470 COMMERICAL TRASH  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 22,182.55 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 ROOL OFF HAULS  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 3,157.00 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 RECYCLING CHARGE  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 481.27 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 CARDBOARD CHARGE  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 7.98 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 OAK & 1ST CORRAL  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 452.18 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 OAK & VANALSTYNE CORRAL  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 449.54 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 EUREKA & VANALSTYNE CORRAL  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 351.99 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 BIDDLE & SYCAMORE CORRAL  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 843.12 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 RECYCLING CONTAMINTION  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 72.00 13336
290‐448‐825‐470 BIDDLE & SYCAMORE OVERAGE  WASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH PICK JAN 2023  8445981‐1710 02/22/23 760.00 13336

Total For Check 13336 117,730.39

Check 13337
101‐209‐825‐345 DCA‐Contractual Services WCA ASSESSING LLC CONTRACTUAL ASSESSING SERVICES MARCH 2023 WCA 02132023 02/22/23 17,436.83 13337

Total For Check 13337 17,436.83

Check 13338
101‐448‐750‐231 Const‐Signage,Striping,Barricades WENSCO SIGN SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR SIGN SHOP DPS 3601602 02/22/23 263.52 13338

Total For Check 13338 263.52

Check 13339
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance WINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT INC STOCK LIGHTS POLICE  230274 02/22/23 535.80 13339
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance WINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT INC CREDIT 230275 02/22/23 (446.60) 13339

Total For Check 13339 89.20

Check 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR LIGHTING AT FIRE STATION 2 618436‐0 02/22/23 22.75 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR LIGHT REPLACEMENT AT FIRE STATION 2 618174‐0 02/22/23 906.00 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR LIGHTING AT FIRE STATION 2 618293‐0 02/22/23 250.40 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR LIGHTING AT FIRE STATION 2 618284‐0 02/22/23 26.45 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR STATION 2 RELIGHTING 618492‐0 02/22/23 3.47 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR RELIGHTING FIRE STATION 2 618481‐0 02/22/23 117.05 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY LIGHT BLUBS FOR CITY HALL 618431‐0 02/22/23 178.92 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY REPLACEMENT LIGHT  BULBS FOR FIRE STATION 2 618477‐0 02/22/23 9.90 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR RELIGHTING FIRE STATION 2 618375‐0 02/22/23 541.48 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR CITY HALL LIGHT SWITCH 618379‐0 02/22/23 83.39 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY REPLACEMENT LEB LIGHTS AND SUPPLIES FOR FIRE STATION 2 618522‐0 02/22/23 678.42 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR FIRE STATION 2 RELIGHTING JOB 618536=0 02/22/23 34.68 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY SUPPLIES FOR FIRE STATION 2 RELIGHTING JOB 618601‐0 02/22/23 51.90 13340
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance WYANDOTTE ELECTRIC SUPPLY REPLACEMENT LED LIGHTS FOR FIRE STATION 2 618585‐0 02/22/23 543.60 13340

Total For Check 13340 3,448.41

Check 153370
731‐000‐231‐040 Payroll W/H‐Credit Union MICHIGAN LEGACY CREDIT UNION PENSION CREDIT UNION PENSION 2/15/23 02/15/23 475.00 153370

Total For Check 153370 475.00

Check 153371
731‐000‐394‐020 Reserve‐MSC Retired Benefits MUNICIPAL SERVICE DMS HEALTH INS PENSION PENSION 2/15/23 02/15/23 8,525.19 153371

Total For Check 153371 8,525.19

Check 153386
101‐000‐231‐086 Pension Liability‐DB (Employee) CITY OF WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT POLICE DEF BENEFIT PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 344.56 153386

Total For Check 153386 344.56

Check 153387
101‐000‐231‐084 Pension Liability‐DB II (Employee) CITY OF WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT CITY OF WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT DB II EMPLOYEE PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 3,606.20 153387

Total For Check 153387 3,606.20
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Check 153388
101‐000‐231‐083 Pension Liability‐DB II (Employer) CITY OF WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT CITY OF WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT DB II EMPLOYER PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 7,211.45 153388

Total For Check 153388 7,211.45

Check 153389
101‐000‐231‐030 P/R Deductions‐Union Dues FOP LODGE 111 FOP LODGE 111 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 74.00 153389

Total For Check 153389 74.00

Check 153390
101‐000‐231‐030 P/R Deductions‐Union Dues IAFF LOCAL #356 IAFF LOCAL #356 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 1,294.42 153390

Total For Check 153390 1,294.42

Check 153391
101‐000‐231‐030 P/R Deductions‐Union Dues MICHIGAN AFSCME COUNCIL 25 DPS UNION DUES PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 209.07 153391

Total For Check 153391 209.07

Check 153392
101‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107305 PAY ENDING 2/15/23 02/15/23 9,652.32 153392
101‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107305 PAY ENDING 2/15/23 02/15/23 4,826.17 153392
499‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107305 PAY ENDING 2/15/23 02/15/23 197.04 153392
499‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107305 PAY ENDING 2/15/23 02/15/23 98.52 153392

Total For Check 153392 14,774.05

Check 153393
101‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107256 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 10,246.82 153393
101‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT CORPORATION # 107256 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 5,123.42 153393

Total For Check 153393 15,370.24

Check 153394
101‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE GC & DPS RHS # 801908 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,050.00 153394
101‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE GC & DPS RHS # 801908 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,050.00 153394
499‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE GC & DPS RHS # 801908 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 50.00 153394
499‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE GC & DPS RHS # 801908 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 50.00 153394

Total For Check 153394 4,200.00

Check 153395
101‐000‐231‐087 Pension Liability‐DC (Employer) MISSION SQUARE POLICE AND FIRE RHS # 803119 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,272.64 153395
101‐000‐231‐088 Pension Liability‐DC (Employee) MISSION SQUARE POLICE AND FIRE RHS # 803119 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,272.64 153395

Total For Check 153395 4,545.28

Check 153396
101‐000‐231‐030 P/R Deductions‐Union Dues POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF MI POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF MI PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 1,208.50 153396

Total For Check 153396 1,208.50

Check 153397
101‐000‐231‐070 P/R Deductions‐Deferred Comp RELIANCE TRUST COMPANY AXA TRUST ID# 0155496177 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 6,395.00 153397
101‐000‐231‐070 P/R Deductions‐Deferred Comp RELIANCE TRUST COMPANY AXA TRUST ID# 0155496177 PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 15.00 153397

Total For Check 153397 6,410.00

Check 153398
101‐000‐231‐030 P/R Deductions‐Union Dues THIN BLUE LINE OF MICHIGAN THIN BLUE LINE OF MICHIGAN PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 5.00 153398

Total For Check 153398 5.00

Check 153399
101‐136‐825‐331 Prosecutorial Services WILLIAM R LOOK, PROFESSIONAL CORP WILLIAM R LOOK PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 2,500.00 153399
101‐200‐825‐330 Legal Fees WILLIAM R LOOK, PROFESSIONAL CORP WILLIAM R LOOK PAY ENDING 2/12/23 02/15/23 1,730.77 153399

Total For Check 153399 4,230.77
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Check 153400
101‐000‐651‐010 Receipts‐Basketball Program AARON DICKEY YOUTH BASKETBALL REFUND 2023 02162023 02/22/23 60.00 153400

Total For Check 153400 60.00

Check 153401
101‐000‐231‐080 P/R Deductions‐Section 125 Plan AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INSURANCE CO ALL STATE ACCIDENT PLAN COVERAGE PERIOD: 01/22/23 ‐ 02/18/23 W8433 021323 02/22/23 715.40 153401

Total For Check 153401 715.40

Check 153402
101‐336‐825‐490 Bldg & Equip Maintenance AMERICAN LOCK & KEY DOOR LOCK REPAIRS @ #2 STATION 13369 02/22/23 210.00 153402

Total For Check 153402 210.00

Check 153403
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW STOCK ANTIFREEZE  349‐305575 02/22/23 101.94 153403
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW STOCK TAIL LIGHTS DPS  349‐305639 02/22/23 215.00 153403
101‐448‐750‐260 Garage‐Operating Expenses AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW PANEL PUSH PINS STOCK  349‐304994 02/22/23 6.29 153403
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW WHEEL HUB FOR VP 7‐3 VIN 1GNSKDEC9LR253564 349‐304697 02/22/23 253.66 153403
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW CREDIT  349‐303043 02/22/23 (120.00) 153403
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW CREDIT  349‐304266 02/22/23 (46.00) 153403
101‐448‐825‐431 Garage‐Other Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW SOLENOIDS FOR VPS 107 VIN 1HTWNAZT3BJ336028 349‐305511 02/22/23 60.98 153403
101‐448‐825‐431 Garage‐Other Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW SOLENOID FOR VPS 107 VIN 1HTWNAZ3BJ336028 349‐305521 02/22/23 58.98 153403
101‐448‐825‐431 Garage‐Other Vehicle Maintenance AUTO VALUE RIVERVIEW STOCK GREASE NEDDLE  349‐305584 02/22/23 8.27 153403

Total For Check 153403 539.12

Check 153404
101‐448‐825‐420 Building Services BAKERS PROPANE INC PROPANE FOR HEATING AIRWAY AT DPS 280602 02/22/23 741.93 153404
101‐448‐825‐420 Building Services BAKERS PROPANE INC PROPANE FOR AIRWAY HEAT DPS 287721 02/22/23 684.39 153404

Total For Check 153404 1,426.32

Check 153405
101‐000‐630‐031 UPON SALE FEE 217 SUPERIOR BARAGOWSKI, DENNIS BD Payment Refund 00042823 02/22/23 196.00 153405

Total For Check 153405 196.00

Check 153406
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CARE NETWORK 00129760 0001 MARCH 2023 230380000420 03/23 02/22/23 13,330.48 153406
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CARE NETWORK 00129760 0001 MARCH 2023 230380000420 03/23 02/22/23 3,040.28 153406
732‐000‐231‐020 Payroll W/H‐Hospital Insurance BLUE CARE NETWORK 00129760 0001 MARCH 2023 230380000420 03/23 02/22/23 1,754.01 153406

Total For Check 153406 18,124.77

Check 153407
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0012 MARCH 2023 07006086 0012 03/23 02/22/23 58,653.16 153407
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0012 MARCH 2023 07006086 0012 03/23 02/22/23 14,663.29 153407

Total For Check 153407 73,316.45

Check 153408
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0011 MARCH 2023 07006086 0011 03/23 02/22/23 28,587.44 153408
101‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0011 MARCH 2023 07006086 0011 03/23 02/22/23 8,885.31 153408
499‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0011 MARCH 2023 07006086 0011 03/23 02/22/23 1,741.22 153408
499‐000‐231‐020 P/R Deductions‐Hospital (Employer) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0011 MARCH 2023 07006086 0011 03/23 02/22/23 435.31 153408

Total For Check 153408 39,649.28

Check 153409
732‐000‐231‐020 Payroll W/H‐Hospital Insurance BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0019 MARCH 2023 07006086 0019 03/23 02/22/23 14,654.70 153409
732‐000‐393‐035 Reserve‐Health & Life BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0019 MARCH 2023 07006086 0019 03/23 02/22/23 718.37 153409

Total For Check 153409 15,373.07

Check 153410
732‐000‐231‐020 Payroll W/H‐Hospital Insurance BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0033 MARCH 2023 07006086 0033 03/23 02/22/23 10,344.51 153410
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Total For Check 153410 10,344.51

Check 153411
732‐000‐231‐020 Payroll W/H‐Hospital Insurance BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0034 MARCH 2023 07006086 0034 03/23 02/22/23 55,026.92 153411
732‐000‐393‐035 Reserve‐Health & Life BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI 007006086 0034 MARCH 2023 07006086 0034 03/23 02/22/23 718.37 153411

Total For Check 153411 55,745.29

Check 153412
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB20‐0216 98 MULBERRY Bruce Swan BD Bond Refund BCB20‐0216 02/22/23 2,300.00 153412

Total For Check 153412 2,300.00

Check 153413
101‐000‐257‐064 BCI23‐0006 4220 6TH C.I.M. BLDG CO. INC. BD Bond Refund BCI23‐0006 02/22/23 1,000.00 153413

Total For Check 153413 1,000.00

Check 153414
101‐000‐283‐030 BOT21‐0018 1110 MAPLE CALINDA, PAUL BD Bond Refund BOT21‐0018 02/22/23 1,000.00 153414

Total For Check 153414 1,000.00

Check 153415
590‐200‐926‐310 Operation,Maintenance & Replacement CHRISTOPHER L DUCOMB EE#1 2022 DOWNTOWN CCTV INPSECTIONS FILE #4837 CCTV INSPECTIONS 02/22/23 12,000.92 153415

Total For Check 153415 12,000.92

Check 153416
101‐303‐750‐261 Gasoline & Oil CITY OF WYANDOTTE FUEL ‐ JAN 2023 6249 02/22/23 219.00 153416

Total For Check 153416 219.00

Check 153417
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB22‐0050 3636 16TH CLARK, LISA BD Bond Refund BCB22‐0050 02/22/23 2,000.00 153417

Total For Check 153417 2,000.00

Check 153418
101‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments CLAWSON, JOSEPH 2022 Sum Tax Refund 57 015 03 0005 002 2610 4TH 02/22/23 285.02 153418

Total For Check 153418 285.02

Check 153419
101‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments CLAWSON, JOSEPH 2022 Win Tax Refund 57 015 03 0005 002 2610 4TH 02/22/23 2.82 153419
701‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments CLAWSON, JOSEPH 2022 Win Tax Refund 57 015 03 0005 002 2610 4TH 02/22/23 282.20 153419

Total For Check 153419 285.02

Check 153420
101‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments COLLINS, NICOLE 2022 Sum Tax Refund 57 013 20 0076 000 2415 CORA 02/22/23 435.81 153420

Total For Check 153420 435.81

Check 153421
101‐448‐825‐490 Land Lease‐DTE (DPS Land) DETROIT EDISON COMPANY STORAGE LEASE FROM THE INTERNATIONAL TRANSMISSION COMPANY TO THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE LEASE PAYMENT 02/22/23 1,766.79 153421

Total For Check 153421 1,766.79

Check 153422
590‐200‐925‐752 Excess Flow Charges DOWNRIVER UTILITY WASTEWATER  JAN 2023 EXCESS FLOW 302396 02/22/23 128,420.00 153422

Total For Check 153422 128,420.00

Check 153423
101‐303‐825‐910 Electric DTE ENERGY GAS ‐ 14300 REAUME PARKWAY, SOUTHGATE ‐ 01/07/23 ‐ 02/03/23 910035252030 02/22/23 318.65 153423

Total For Check 153423 318.65

Check 153424
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB22‐0098 16 KREGER DRIVE GEE, KRISTIN M BD Bond Refund BCB22‐0098 02/22/23 200.00 153424
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Total For Check 153424 200.00

Check 153425
101‐215‐850‐510 Office Equipment GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL SHELVING 120098815 02/22/23 273.61 153425

Total For Check 153425 273.61

Check 153426
101‐000‐231‐080 P/R Deductions‐Section 125 Plan GRANGE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIFE INSURANCE MARCH 2023 19382319 03/23 02/22/23 750.41 153426

Total For Check 153426 750.41

Check 153427
101‐336‐925‐720 Education HENRY FORD WYANDOTTE HOSPITAL ACLS RECERTIFICATION CLASS  FOR 12 2/3/2023 02/22/23 2,980.00 153427

Total For Check 153427 2,980.00

Check 153428
101‐301‐850‐540 Other Equipment JLC OPERATING, LLC WINDOW PUNCH TOOLS 116260 02/22/23 1,299.90 153428

Total For Check 153428 1,299.90

Check 153429
101‐336‐850‐540 Other Equipment JW2 FIRE CONSULTANTS FEMA AFG GRANT FEE NOZZLES/HOSE/SM ENGINES 615 02/22/23 3,309.00 153429

Total For Check 153429 3,309.00

Check 153430
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB20‐0193 701 PINE KALI KOVELESKI BD Bond Refund BCB20‐0193 02/22/23 1,000.00 153430

Total For Check 153430 1,000.00

Check 153431
101‐000‐654‐005 Receipts‐Yack Ice Rental KATHLEEN MORITZ ICE RENTAL REFUND JAN. 28, 2022 01282023 02/22/23 225.00 153431

Total For Check 153431 225.00

Check 153432
101‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐PROPERTY TAX OVERPAYMENTS  LAKOMY, CHRISTOPHER 2022 Sum Tax Refund 57 018 02 0682 002 3855 19TH 02/22/23 386.33 153432

Total For Check 153432 386.33

Check 153433
101‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments LAKOMY, CHRISTOPHER 2022 Win Tax Refund 57 018 02 0682 002 3855 19TH 02/22/23 3.82 153433
701‐000‐203‐030 A/P‐Property Tax Overpayments LAKOMY, CHRISTOPHER 2022 Win Tax Refund 57 018 02 0682 002 3855 19TH 02/22/23 382.50 153433

Total For Check 153433 386.32

Check 153434
101‐302‐925‐790 Miscellaneous LANGUAGE LINE SERVICE INC OVER THE PHONE INTERPRETATION ‐ DISPATCH 10730686 02/22/23 59.70 153434

Total For Check 153434 59.70

Check 153435
101‐448‐750‐242 Parks‐Equipment LOWE'S COMPANIES INC CREDIT CARD STATEMENT 12‐26‐22 TO 1‐25‐23 99002006684 02/22/23 71.15 153435
101‐448‐750‐270 Building Maintenance LOWE'S COMPANIES INC CREDIT CARD STATEMENT 12‐26‐22 TO 1‐25‐23 99002006684 02/22/23 156.04 153435
499‐200‐850‐539 Beautification Commission LOWE'S COMPANIES INC ACCT NUMBER 9900 926436 9  LOWES FEB 2023 02/22/23 23.72 153435

Total For Check 153435 250.91

Check 153436
492‐200‐850‐519 Land Purchases MARK J ABDO SERVICE IN CONNECTION WITH LABADIE TITLE ISSUES LABADIE TITLE 02/22/23 1,500.00 153436

Total For Check 153436 1,500.00

Check 153437
101‐000‐257‐064 Reserve‐Compliance Escrow MARK J ORZECH ESCROW REFUND 3550 12TH 12‐383 3550 12TH 02/22/23 1,200.00 153437

Total For Check 153437 1,200.00

Check 153438
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101‐000‐257‐064 BCB22‐0007 700 8TH MATTHEW LESKO BD Bond Refund BCB22‐0007 02/22/23 500.00 153438
Total For Check 153438 500.00

Check 153439
101‐448‐825‐430 Garage‐Police Vehicle Maintenance MICHAEL BATES CHEVROLET OIL COOLER LINES FOR VP 7‐10 VIN 1GNSKDEC1HR232523 177514 02/22/23 69.37 153439

Total For Check 153439 69.37

Check 153440
101‐448‐825‐431 Garage‐Other Vehicle Maintenance MICHIGAN CAT STOCK WHEEL FOR BACK HOE DPS PD14416628 02/22/23 790.34 153440

Total For Check 153440 790.34

Check 153441
101‐301‐750‐220 Operating Expenses MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF STATE ANNUAL RENEWAL OF SUPPRESSED LICENSE PLATES MARCH 2023 02/22/23 208.00 153441

Total For Check 153441 208.00

Check 153442
101‐200‐825‐910 ELECTRIC  1168 GROVE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1168 GROVE   JANUARY 2023 001153‐018253 JAN23 02/22/23 317.67 153442
101‐303‐825‐910 ELECTRIC  1168 GROVE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1168 GROVE   JANUARY 2023 001153‐018253 JAN23 02/22/23 317.67 153442
101‐303‐825‐920 WATER  1170 GROVE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1170 GROVE  JANUARY 2023 001153‐026385 JAN23 02/22/23 54.21 153442
101‐336‐825‐910 ELECTRIC 1093 FORD MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1093 FORD JANUARY 2023 035027‐025993 JAN 23 02/22/23 1,224.36 153442
101‐336‐825‐920 WATER 1093 FORD MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1093 FORD JANUARY 2023 035027‐025993 JAN 23 02/22/23 195.45 153442
101‐448‐825‐910 ELECTRIC  4201 13TH MUNICIPAL SERVICE 4201 13TH    JANUARY 2023 001153‐024523 JAN23 02/22/23 2,353.09 153442
101‐448‐825‐920 WATER  4201 13TH MUNICIPAL SERVICE 4201 13TH    JANUARY 2023 001153‐024523 JAN23 02/22/23 299.76 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 2304 12TH MUNICIPAL SERVICE 2304 12TH JANUARY 2023 019319‐017541 JAN 23 02/22/23 16.19 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 2304 12TH 2 MUNICIPAL SERVICE 2304 12TH 2 FEBRUARY 2023 019527‐017585 FEB 23 02/22/23 19.44 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 2289 15TH MUNICIPAL SERVICE 2289 15TH JANUARY 2023 020613‐017757 JAN 23 02/22/23 71.51 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 4119 20TH CONC  MUNICIPAL SERVICE 4119 20TH CONC JANUARY 2023 025453‐022215 JAN 23 02/22/23 41.52 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 2050 LUDINGTON MUNICIPAL SERVICE 2050 LUDINGTON JANUARY 2023 009777‐018731 JAN 23 02/22/23 33.42 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 4267 23RD FLD MUNICIPAL SERVICE 4267 23RD FLD JANUARY 2023 028143‐016787 JAN 23 02/22/23 62.77 153442
101‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 1940 LUDINGTON MUNICIPAL SERVICE 1940 LUDINGTON JANUARY 2023 009775‐028729 JAN 23 02/22/23 186.90 153442
499‐200‐850‐542 104 ELM CABLE JANUARY 2023 MUNICIPAL SERVICE 104 ELM CABLE JANUARY 2023 57023 JANUARY 2023 02/22/23 6.00 153442
499‐200‐850‐542 2401 EUREKA JANUARY 2023 MUNICIPAL SERVICE 2401 EUREKA JANUARY 2023 85239‐027277 JAN 23 02/22/23 273.16 153442
525‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 3625 BIDDLE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 3635 BIDDLE JANUARY 2023 001233‐014201 JAN 23 02/22/23 549.91 153442
525‐750‐825‐910 ELECTRIC ‐ 3625 BIDDLE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 3625 BIDDLE JANUARY 2023 001231‐014199 JAN 23 02/22/23 328.83 153442
525‐750‐825‐920 WATER ‐ 3635 BIDDLE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 3635 BIDDLE JANUARY 2023 001233‐014201 JAN 23 02/22/23 27.49 153442
525‐750‐825‐920 WATER ‐ 3625 BIDDLE MUNICIPAL SERVICE 3625 BIDDLE JANUARY 2023 001231‐014199 JAN 23 02/22/23 64.63 153442

Total For Check 153442 6,443.98

Check 153443
101‐000‐411‐085 Taxes‐Wayne County Refunds OFFICE OF THE WAYNE COUNTY JANUARY 2023 DELINQUENT TAX SETTLEMENT 39923 02/22/23 636.56 153443

Total For Check 153443 636.56

Check 153444
677‐200‐950‐610 Liability Claims‐City PAUL WORSLEY TREE FELL ON MR. WORSLEY'S CAR CAUSED DAMAGE 433 WALNUT 02/22/23 500.00 153444

Total For Check 153444 500.00

Check 153445
101‐301‐925‐720 Education PENUMBRA LLC‐LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINI DET. HASKIN ‐ DIGITAL EVIDENCE BASICS VIRTUAL TRAINING 0000128 02/22/23 175.00 153445

Total For Check 153445 175.00

Check 153446
101‐448‐825‐420 Building Services SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION MONTHLY ELEVATOR SERVICE AT THE POLICE STATION 8106163671 02/22/23 402.92 153446

Total For Check 153446 402.92

Check 153447
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB20‐0203 1544 MAPLE SFR3 LLC BD Bond Refund BCB20‐0203 02/22/23 5,000.00 153447

Total For Check 153447 5,000.00
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Check 153448
101‐756‐750‐225 Concession Supplies SHERYL RILEY CONCESSION SUPPLIES 02082023 02/22/23 149.21 153448
101‐756‐750‐225 CONCESSION SUPPLIES SHERYL RILEY SUPPLIES FOR YACK CONCESSION 01242023 02/22/23 93.74 153448

Total For Check 153448 242.95

Check 153449
101‐136‐750‐210 Office Supplies STAPLES ADVANTAGE OFFICE SUPPLIES  3530136580 02/22/23 1,026.60 153449
101‐301‐750‐210 Office Supplies STAPLES ADVANTAGE STICKY BACK VELCRO STRIP 3528631106 02/22/23 36.99 153449
285‐225‐925‐849 Special Events‐Misc STAPLES ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES  3530203226 02/22/23 40.45 153449

Total For Check 153449 1,104.04

Check 153450
590‐200‐926‐310 Operation,Maintenance & Replacement STATE OF MICHIGAN STORM WATER ANNUAL PERMIT FEE, 2023 MI0060036 WYANDOTTE MS4‐WAYNE 761‐11071475 02/22/23 3,000.00 153450

Total For Check 153450 3,000.00

Check 153451
701‐000‐228‐063 Due to State of MI‐Sex Offender STATE OF MICHIGAN SEX OFFENDER FEES 551‐610596 02/22/23 210.00 153451

Total For Check 153451 210.00

Check 153452
101‐336‐750‐222 Medical/Rescue Supplies STRYKER SALES CORPORATION SERVICE OF LUCAS EQUIPMENT 4042283M 02/22/23 420.00 153452

Total For Check 153452 420.00

Check 153453
525‐750‐750‐250 Course Maintenance THE TORO COMPANY NSN MONTHLY FEES 02012023 02/22/23 166.00 153453

Total For Check 153453 166.00

Check 153454
499‐200‐925‐807 EXISTING BUSINESS STIMULUS TRAFFIC JAM BOUTIQUE DOWNTOWN DOLLARS 696217 02/22/23 10.00 153454

Total For Check 153454 10.00

Check 153455
101‐200‐825‐450 Insurance & Casualty TRAVELERS CL REMITTANCE CENTER 14T9365A‐ZUP ‐ UMBRELLA/EXCESS, 3037P045 ‐ 810 ‐ AUTOMOBILE 7629K8128 02/22/23 161,318.00 153455
101‐750‐850‐550 SMART‐Equipment/Maintenance TRAVELERS CL REMITTANCE CENTER 14T9365A‐ZUP ‐ UMBRELLA/EXCESS, 3037P045 ‐ 810 ‐ AUTOMOBILE 7629K8128 02/22/23 12,500.00 153455
525‐750‐825‐450 Insurance TRAVELERS CL REMITTANCE CENTER 14T9365A‐ZUP ‐ UMBRELLA/EXCESS, 3037P045 ‐ 810 ‐ AUTOMOBILE 7629K8128 02/22/23 3,000.00 153455

Total For Check 153455 176,818.00

Check 153456
101‐336‐825‐490 Bldg & Equip Maintenance TURNOUT MANAGEMENT REPAIR/CLEANING TURNOUT GEAR 26583 02/22/23 348.70 153456

Total For Check 153456 348.70

Check 153457
101‐000‐257‐064 BCB19‐0142 3327 20TH US BANK TRUST BD Bond Refund BCB19‐0142 02/22/23 1,000.00 153457

Total For Check 153457 1,000.00

Check 153458
101‐303‐825‐220 Operating Expenses VERIZON WIRELESS ACCT. NO. 342173610‐00001 ‐ CELL PHONES JAN. 5 ‐ FEB. 4, 2023 9926886280 02/22/23 40.97 153458
101‐336‐750‐221 Cellular Phones & Pagers VERIZON WIRELESS INVOICE #9926942689 JAN 5‐FEB 4, 2023 942095991‐00001 02/22/23 144.04 153458
101‐440‐750‐221 Cellular Phones & Pagers VERIZON WIRELESS JAN 05 ‐ FEB 04 9926887980 02/22/23 122.94 153458
101‐440‐750‐221 Cellular Phones & Pagers VERIZON WIRELESS ACCT. NO. 342173610‐00001 ‐ CELL PHONES JAN. 5 ‐ FEB. 4, 2023 9926886280 02/22/23 68.96 153458
101‐448‐750‐222 Cellular Phones & Pagers VERIZON WIRELESS ROTHERMAL/MARTIN CELL 1‐5/2‐4‐23  LAST BILL FOR MARTIN 9926897592 02/22/23 92.02 153458
101‐448‐750‐222 Cellular Phones & Pagers VERIZON WIRELESS JAN 05 ‐ FEB 04 9926887980 02/22/23 41.17 153458
265‐301‐925‐730 Other Expenses ‐ State VERIZON WIRELESS ACCT. NO. 342173610‐00001 ‐ CELL PHONES JAN. 5 ‐ FEB. 4, 2023 9926886280 02/22/23 500.52 153458
590‐200‐926‐310 Operation,Maintenance & Replacement VERIZON WIRELESS JAN 05 ‐ FEB 04 9926887980 02/22/23 120.08 153458

Total For Check 153458 1,130.70

Check 153459
101‐301‐925‐770 Prisoner Transport/Holding WAYNE COUNTY ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE JAIL BILLING ‐ NOVEMBER 2022 313405 02/22/23 2,135.00 153459



GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Invoice  Chk Date Amount Check #

02/22/2023                             INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF WYANDOTTE                                        
                                            EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/09/2023 ‐ 02/22/2023                                            

                                                         JOURNALIZED PAID                                                          
                                                          BANK CODE: CLAIM                                                         

Total For Check 153459 2,135.00

Fund Totals:
Fund 101 General Fund 663,853.38
Fund 202 Major Street Fund 4,664.27
This is to certify that the above vouchers amounting to $2,870,715.44 have been examined, that the materials and services have been received, tha 1,166.07
Fund 260 Michigan Indigent Defense 10,875.00
Fund 265 Drug Forfeiture Fund 601.49
Fund 281 Housing Rehabilitation Fund 50.00
Fund 285 Special Events Fund 762.30
Fund 290 Solid Waste Disposal Fund 125,434.39
Fund 492 TIFA Consolidated Fund 20,278.00
Fund 499 DDA tax increment Finance Fund 3,942.79
Fund 525 Municipal Golf Course Fund 4,940.88
Fund 530 Building Rental Fund 4,787.67
Fund 590 Sewage Fund 147,420.87
Fund 677 Self Insurance Fund 1,146.00
Fund 701 Trust Fund 901,688.43
Fund 731 Retirement System Fund 83,695.40
Fund 732 Retiree Health Care Fund 83,216.88

Total For All Funds:  2,058,523.82
Pension 02/15/23 565,526.07       
Payroll 02/15/23 246,665.55       
Total 2,870,715.44

City Clerk   ____________________________________________

This is to certify that the above vouchers amounting to $2,870,715.44 have been examined, that the materials 
and services have been received, that the price and computations are correct, that the invoices, receiving slips, 
and supporting data are attached and in order and that the proper accounts have been charged. The Treasurer is 
hereby authorized to pay the above vouchers.

Mayor          ___________________________________________



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 

  
Item Number: # 

Date: March 13, 2023 
  
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________ 
  
RESOLVED that the total bills and accounts of $ 2,870,715.44 as presented by the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby APPROVED for payment. 
  
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution. 
  
 MOTION by Councilperson _____________________________________________ 
  
 SUPPORTED by Councilperson __________________________________________ 
 
   YEAS   COUNCIL   NAYS 
            
      Alderman     
      Calvin     
      Crayne     
      Hanna     
      Shuryan     
      Stec     
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City of Wyandotte
Police Commission Meeting

Regular Commission Meeting 
February 14, 2023

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Doug Melzer 
Commissioner Bobie Heck 
Deputy Chief Archie Hamilton

Absent: Commissioner John Harris (excused) 
Chief Brian Zalewski (excused)

Others Present: Laura Allen (Recording Secretary)   

The regular meeting was called to order at the Wyandotte Police Department, 2015 Biddle 
Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan by Chairperson, Commissioner Melzer at 6:10 p.m.

The Minutes from the regular Police Commission meeting on January 24, 2023 were presented. 

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the regular minutes of January 24, 2023, as presented.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NONE

COMMUNICATIONS

NONE

DEPARTMENTAL

1. Police Statistics – January 2023

Deputy Chief Hamilton indicated everything is status quo; nothing abnormal is going on 
in the community.

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to receive the January 2023 Police statistics and place on file.

2. Awarding of Firearm to Retiree – Daniel Torolski

A discussion ensued regarding the criteria a retiree must meet in order to receive their 
Department issued firearm upon retiring.  Years of service and the totality of the 
circumstances surrounding the retirement are key components to consider when awarding 
a firearm to a retiree and should be decided on a case-by-case basis.

Daniel Torolski did not meet the criteria and was denied his Department firearm.



Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to deny the awarding of his Department firearm to Daniel Torolski based upon the 
fact he did not meet the criteria.

3. Bills and Accounts – February 14, 2023, $33,623.24

Heck moved, Melzer seconded
Motion CARRIED, to approve payment of the bills for February 14, 2023, $33,623.24

NEW BUSINESS

NONE

Members of the Audience

ADJOURNMENT 

Since there was no further business to come before the Commission, there was a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 6:45 p.m. 

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to adjourn meeting at 6:45 p.m.

Laura Allen
Administrative Assistant
Wyandotte Police Department 

Commission Meeting Minutes
Page –2



City of Wyandotte
Police Commission Meeting

Regular Commission Meeting 
February 28, 2023

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Doug Melzer 
Commissioner Bobie Heck 
Chief Brian Zalewski 

Absent: Commissioner John Harris (excused) 

Others Present: Laura Allen (Recording Secretary)   

The regular meeting was called to order at the Wyandotte Police Department, 2015 Biddle 
Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan by Chairperson, Commissioner Melzer at 6:00 p.m.

The Minutes from the regular Police Commission meeting on February 14, 2023 were presented. 

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the regular minutes of February 14, 2023, as presented.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NONE

COMMUNICATIONS

NONE

DEPARTMENTAL

1. Purchase of Police Patrol Vehicles

The purchase of the vehicles was already included in the current budget year.  

The Chief is requesting 4 Chevy Tahoes to replace the fleet vehicles which have high 
mileage and engine hours.

The new vehicles can be retrofitted to a certain extent, but they will require some new 
equipment before they are road ready as police patrol vehicles.

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the purchase of (4) new Chevy Tahoes as presented by Chief Zalewski.



2. Awarding of Firearms to Retirees

Based upon the discussion held on this topic at the last Police Commission meeting, both 
Chief Zalewski and Deputy Chief Hamilton amended the Awarding of Firearms to 
Retirees form to reflect the concerns / wishes of the Commissioners.

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the amended language included in the Awarding of Firearms to Retirees 
form as presented by Chief Zalewski.

3. Bills and Accounts – February 28, 2023, $44,922.79

Heck moved, Melzer seconded
Motion CARRIED, to approve payment of the bills for February 28, 2023, $44,922.79

NEW BUSINESS

NONE

Members of the Audience

ADJOURNMENT 

Since there was no further business to come before the Commission, there was a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 6:07 p.m. 

Heck moved, Melzer seconded,
CARRIED, to adjourn meeting at 6:07 p.m.

Laura Allen
Administrative Assistant
Wyandotte Police Department 

Commission Meeting Minutes
Page –2
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